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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Dong Haoran =4
Chairman /&

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the “Company”), | hereby report that for the year
2017 the Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) achieved a sale revenue of HK$1,453.0
million, representing an increase of 6.9% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
was HK$220.1 million, representing a decrease of
79.3% when comparing with the corresponding
period of last year. The decrease in profit was primarily
attributable to (i) the recognition of an one-off gain of
HK$620.8 million arising from the disposal of China
Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd (“CEC
Technology”) and the subscription of new shares
in China Electronics Optics Valley Union Holding
Company Limited (“CEOVU") in 2016; and (ii) the
recognition of an one-off accounting gain representing
negative goodwill of HK$409.4 million arising from the
acquisition of 31.88% interest in CEOVU in 2016. Basic
earnings per share was HK10.84 cents.

RAANEBERRPBEETERBRFEBERAA (KA
ADEFES([EEE])EM 2017F A A RE
MEA R ([AKE]) BHRHEEWA,453.088%
T BEERE EFA6.9% - AN RIAREE FE(L 5 T
R2201BEBTT REFRATPRET.3% ° &m
FMTERFEEHRO2016ERAEETRE TR
FEZERAR([FERE]) RRBHHELA
HEIERERAR([RFEXRD BRDELEZ X
MU E620.8F B8 7T ¢ K(i1)20165F R U EE +
BHA3188%BHEELAZ — X ERE K= (A&
) 409. 4B BB AT - BREAREFA10.84
AL -
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The Board recommends the payment of a dividend
of HK3.0 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: HK3.0 cents), amounting to a
total dividend of HK$60.9 million. Subject to approval
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the dividend will be distributed
on or about 31 July 2018.

In January 2017, with the tremendous assistance
from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder,
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC") and
through its unsecured guarantee support, the Company
successfully borrowed unsecured short-term bank
borrowings of RMB1.79 billion due in January 2018
to redeem its 4.70% unsecured bonds in the principal
amount of RMB2.75 billion (the “Bonds”) in full on
maturity. In addition, the Company also through CEC's
unsecured guarantee support, successfully raised new
unsecured short-term bank borrowings to repay such
unsecured short-term bank borrowings before the end
of 2017.

In May 2017, the Group completed the disposal of its
navigation chips business for a cash consideration of
RMB100.0 million and recorded an one-off gain before
taxation of HK$102.5 million.

As a leader of the smart card chips industry in the
PRC, our products are mainly used in sectors such as
identity authentication, financial payment, government
utilities, and telecommunication and mobile payment,
with businesses all over the PRC and overseas. In recent
years, the Group has been actively developing new
technologies and new applications based on market
and industry development. Through our continuous
effort in product and technology research, the Group
has applied its security technology, which has been
accumulating over the years, to financial payment,
security chip products for Internet of Things and system
solutions, and has been continuously researching
and developing security chip products that meet the
demand of the market and the industry.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Looking into 2018, facing intensified competition
across the domestic and overseas integrated circuits
industry, a relatively large market capacity of
domestic financial payment chips resulting from the
implementation of national policies, and the impacts of
the constraint of the domestic foundry manufacturers’
production capacities, the Group will closely act upon
the national policies and track the market demands,
seize the opportunity of the financial payment chips
market, actively explore the domestic and overseas
potential customers in industries and enterprises,
strengthen the construction of sales channels and
expand its scale of sales. In addition, the Group will
capitalise on the trading relationship established
with countries along the route of the “Belt and
Road Initiative”, and step up its efforts in developing
the international market through actively launching
promotion of the Group’s security smart card chips to
these countries, and emphasise on the new business
layout that could drive our future revenue growth,
strive to provide diversified and high quality products
that meet the demands of customers and markets.

On the other hand, based on its independently
developed security technology, smart card chips
design technology and application technology
accumulated over the years and a market orientated
approach, the Group will strengthen its research in
areas such as Internet of Things system technology,
security technology, smart card chips technology, and
production process technology, and take forward the
development of products such as Internet of Things
security chips and system solution, and Internet of
Things secure operation and maintenance platforms,
as well as applications for industries such as smart
cities, smart manufacturing, smart transportation, smart
home, and automotive electronics in a progressive
manner, and continuously strive to enhance its core
competitiveness in the industry and the market of
Internet of Things. In addition, the Group will also
actively strengthen its strategic co-operation with
foundry manufacturers and optimise the processing
flows of its supply chain to ensure its production
capacity and lower its production cost, and strive to
become a world leading supplier of smart cards and
security chips for Internet of Things.

FRE2018%F - [ £ B A SN SR B B B 3R 3 T+ HU K
RUE - B AE R BRT SR w50 B A B
HBNERFBBEATHEE - MEANGREREE
BRERZPE  AEEBETIREERABER KIR
BEWSHER - ESBRX NS T5RE  EiR
EREANMIEREEBETF  MBHERE
ER - RBARHERER - AR S8 —F— ]
BERESERAREYNE HRRE  BRESHAE
ERERRZ2 TR EARERNERE - AN
ERABERMS - XERRA S ARRKRAE R
MFHERBHR  BOIRREHEREEFMMSE K

MZle REEEM-

A= hE ARERERZEFRIANBEEILZER
i~ R REH M AR - ATIS RER
ISR E B R SR - T2 RAM B Bl
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FERGRATR DEHAL2ERTESE
mE R ANAEBEMT BRERE  BEX
B BRERE REETFIENEM TR
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S+ N ER [ 7T A A5 A B & () R 7 0 58 B S S 1B R
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Mr. Ma Yuchuan resigned as the Deputy Chairman of
the Board and executive director of the Company in
January 2018. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank Mr. Ma for his invaluable contributions during
his tenure of service. On behalf of the Board, | am
delighted to welcome Ms. Liu Jinmei as a non-executive
director of the Company. The new director, with her
extensive experience in the integrated circuits industry,
will no doubt extend the diversity and supplement the
talent base of the Board.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
staff members for their contributions and efforts in the
past year. | would also like to express our most sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for
their continuing co-operation and support.

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW
Results overview

During the year, the Group’s continuing operations
comprised the design and sale of integrated circuit
chips. The Group discontinued its development and
management of electronic information technology
industrial parks operation in June 2016. The analysis
below reports only on the continuing operations of the
Group.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$1,453.0 million, representing
an increase of 6.9% when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to HK$220.1
million, representing a decrease of 79.3% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year.
The decrease in profit was primarily attributable to
(i) the recognition by the Group of an one-off gain
of HK$620.8 million arising from the disposal of CEC
Technology and the subscription of new shares in
CEOVU for the year ended 31 December 2016; and (ii)
the recognition by the Group of an one-off accounting
gain representing negative goodwill of HK$409.4
million arising from the acquisition of 31.88% interest
in CEOVU for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
basic earnings per share was HK10.84 cents (2016:
HK52.28 cents).

Integrated circuits design operation

The Group’s integrated circuits design operation
comprises the design of security smart card chips and
the development of application system. Currently, our
products are mainly used in sectors such as identity
authentication, financial payment, government utilities,
telecommunication and mobile payment. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group has obtained
78 new patents, registered 9 new computer software
copyrights, and registered 9 new integrated circuits
layout designs.

Ko
REBm

AEERFAZRHBEREZX¥BERERER LA
2R MEEE - 201668 REBR FEE
HETEERNEXRZBRERERZER - U
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HZE2016F12A31HIEFE  AEEBERALES
BERIEERBHHPELABRDEE 2 — KW
620.8E & BT KR E =2016F12H318 1t
FE  AEEERBERENA31.88%REESE
Z—RMEEAKE (BREBEHE)409.48 8B TH
B FIREARRETF E10.8475 1 (20164 : 52.28
AL o

EREBRRTAER

REBEXNEREFTEFRETEHERRLZEN
FRERARERRAEAE - Bl AEEERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2017, the global smart cards market entered into
a steady development stage, and the domestic smart
card chips market was highly competitive. Driven
by the policy on the issuance of state cryptographic
algorithm powered bank cards, the market demand for
domestic financial payment chips grew continuously,
and coupled with the Group's successful participation
in bank card projects of various major domestic banks,
market share of and sales volume of the financial
payment chips of the Group increased significantly
when comparing with the corresponding period of
last year. Meanwhile, as the demand increased, sales
volume of the identity authentication chips increased
when comparing with the corresponding period of
last year. On the other hand, due to the constraint
of the foundry manufacturers’ production capacities,
the Group’s supply of telecommunication and mobile
payment chips was in shortage, leading to a slight drop
in the sales volume of the Group’s telecommunication
and mobile payment chips despite rising demand in
the overseas market. As the domestic social security
cards issuance coverage rate has increased in recent
years, the demand for new cards has decreased,
and sales volume of the domestic social security
cards has dropped slightly when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year. For the year ended
31 December 2017, overall sales volume of the Group
increased slightly by 1.7% when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year. Since the types of
smart card chips that recorded growth for the year
ended 31 December 2017 were mainly products with
higher unit price, the impact of the general decrease
in selling prices of smart card chips when comparing
with the corresponding period of last year caused by
further intensified competition in market price on the
revenue of the year was compensated. Revenue of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$1,453.0 million, representing an increase of 6.9%
when comparing with the corresponding period of last
year.

BEEEFNWRE DM

R2017%F - 2IRERERTHEAFBRREREE -
BAMSERGAMBERSERIRE - BEE
MEEZEEZERMROBERBUORER  BESR
TG MR RFEER  M2AEBEKI
SERRAZKNIBITHRITREE  mHEEEXR
HEEREAFRBKRNBIEE - R - AREXHY
B EEHENCREEEREFREA AL
K- Z—FE HRREBRBEEFEZR &
SEEFHABRYINCAHERZRR  FAKEE
CEBBI MO EEITISERERKEEMNBR
T HEEREAFRBBEE TR BELFENRN
HEREREBERBSXHMAK  FEBERFTXK
BL BAMERERHEEEREAFRMBEET
[ o MEZ2017F12A31BIEFE - NEEEH
EEREFRPEMLRI7% - AREE2017
FNRANBLFEHEERGERNSTESEFR
SREIZABEERSMER  AMEHETEMS
BREBRFE—PNBEREERCHINEERE
FRHALEE THREFRUANTE - AEBEZE
2017F12A31B L FE 2 WA B1,453.08 875
T REFRBEA6.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWRE DM

With the intensified competition in the market of
financial payment chips and telecommunication
and mobile payment chips, selling price of these
products dropped in general as compared with those
in 2016. In addition, the cost of production of smart
card chips remains to be high due to the rising cost
of raw materials and the constraint of the foundry
manufacturers’ production capacities. All these factors
have led to a decrease in the Group’s overall gross
profit margin in 2017 to 34.4% (2016: 37.2%).

Selling and marketing costs for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$97.6 million (2016:
HK$101.5 million). As a percentage to revenue, selling
and marketing costs decreased to 6.7% from 7.5%
of the corresponding period of last year. The main
reason for the decrease in 2017 was the continuous
implementation of the reorganisation of the Group’s
personnel structure and the disposal of its navigation
chips business, decrease in marketing staff, and the
implementation of stringent cost control measures
during the year.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$352.1 million,
representing a decrease of 14.5% when comparing
with the corresponding period of last year, which
was primarily due to the decrease in research and
development costs during the year. In 2017, the Group
continued to implement the integration and centralised
planning of resources for research and development,
disposed of its navigation chips business and
implemented stringent cost control measures, resulting
in a decrease in the research and development costs as
a percentage of the revenue.

Research and development costs for the year ended
31 December 2017 was HK$224.9 million (2016:
HK$276.8 million), which represented 15.5% of
the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: 20.4%). Research and development during
the year primarily focused on areas such as the
continuous running-in of existing process, continuous
improvements in product functions and performance,
advanced research of new process, enhancement of
product security technology, research in application
of security chips in the Internet of Things and the
development of application systems and solutions.

BEEESRMINOR REFHEBRHEZMNER TS
BFEZBIL ZSEREBR2016FLE T
Bo BN FEMBIRA EREGEREERLER
RZFE BRERSFEEKABESTT o U E
AEEBHB017FAEEERBENETEE34.4%
(2016%F : 37.2%) °

HZE2017F12A31BIEFEZEERTIHHEER
NAEI7.6EEB T (20164 : 101 5BEET) °
HEMMBEHEXNAGERAZES LBHEFRE
Z75% [ BEE6T% > THEMEZRERHNA
EER2017FHREZEAELEABRRTEEHE
MK ¥R CHABRY  RBEFRERT K
T B B AN 32 1) 45 7

HZE2017F12A31B L FE 2T HAX A£352.1
BEBTLT REFRPTHRI45%  EBE2HRN
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FRBLZEMALAZERNELHER—E3
HEEBMOCR XL - WE T BRI K AL
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BE22498FEB L (20164 : 276.8EEB7T) ' 1h
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ENRBEES  ENNEREROFERA
TENTER ERLE2HNNRES @ EARYE
WEFNLZE2EAARARERBRAMEB RS R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other income and gains

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
disposed of its navigation chips business and
recognised a gain before taxation of HK$102.5 million.

Government grants recognised as income decreased
by 78.2% to HK$20.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 resulted from less government
subsidies received for research and development costs
incurred in the year.

Share of result of an associate

CEOVU, our associate listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, is principally engaged in the
business of development and operation of large-scale
business parks in the PRC. The Group’s share of
result from CEOVU for the year ended 31 December
2017 was HK$124.1 million, representing a decrease
of 72.7% when comparing with the corresponding
period of last year, which was primarily due to the
recognition by the Group of an one-off accounting gain
representing negative goodwill of HK$409.4 million
arising from the acquisition of 31.88% interest in
CEOVU for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its working capital and
funding requirements through internal resources,
bank and other borrowings, and issuance of corporate
bonds. At 31 December 2017, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HK$373.8 million,
of which 96.8% was denominated in Renminbi, 2.3%
in United States dollars and 0.9% in Hong Kong
dollars (2016: HK$911.9 million, of which 93.0% was
denominated in Renminbi, 6.4% in Hong Kong dollars
and 0.6% in United States dollars).

BEEEFNWRE DM

Hitb W A K W 58
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWRE DM

At 31 December 2017, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of HK$2,314.5 million, of which 95.6%
were denominated in Renminbi and 4.4% in Hong
Kong dollars (2016: HK$477.6 million, of which 74.8%
were denominated in Renminbi and 25.2% in Hong
Kong dollars). Among these borrowings, (i) all were
unsecured (2016: HK$120.2 million were secured by
short-term deposits of the Group and HK$357.4 million
were unsecured), and (ii) HK$2,214.5 million and
HK$100.0 million were borrowed at fixed and variable
interest rates respectively (2016: HK$357.3 million and
HK$120.3 million were borrowed at fixed and variable
interest rates respectively). At 31 December 2017,
committed borrowing facilities available to the Group
but not drawn amounted to HK$1,124.4 million.

In January 2017, the Company redeemed the 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of
RMB2,750.0 million in full.

The Group's revenue are mainly denominated in
Renminbi and payments are denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group will make use of
hedging contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the
risk of foreign exchange fluctuation arising from its
operations.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$1,258.1 million (2016: HK$1,239.5
million). The gearing ratio, which is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity and net debt of the Group,
was 48.7% (2016: 61.1%).

MATERIAL DISPOSAL

On 3 March 2017, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co.,
Ltd (“Huada Electronics”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement to dispose
of its navigation chips business for a cash consideration
of RMB100.0 million to Shenzhen Huada Beidou
Technology Company Limited (the “Business Transfer”).
The Business Transfer was completed in May 2017. The
Group recognised a gain before taxation of HK$102.5
million.

R2017F12A8318  AEEBMERTREMEE
B23145BEE L #AlEB6%RUAARER
4.4% A TTEHE (2016%F 1 477. 6B & BT * DR
BT748%AANRER252%ABTTEHE) 2 H1E
ER() 2 AEEKE (20165 : AHI202B8H8
TLTIAAREE 2 B RIER R R357.488 8T
AEEE) - Mi)E%2,21458887tX100.08
ERATORINEEMNERZEFEREE (20165
BH3573EEETNI203BEETORNEE
FERZHFEMEE) - R2017F128318 * &
SEMABRZEARBEEREAR,124488
ETT ©
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EAHESHE

MR2017F3A38 » KRR EHBRARILRPE
ERETFRAIFBEREEARNTERETF] I
HEABSHBARKI0008E THELEM
SR EBTRIERIEARFER AR ([EKE
) o EBEZEEN2017E5A TR - NEEE
R—EBRBATWE102588 8T -

12 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2017



Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2017, the Group did not pledge any
assets as collateral for its borrowings (2016: certain
assets of the Group with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$126.5 million were pledged as collateral for
borrowings of the Group).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
material outstanding capital commitment (2016: nil) for
the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets. The
Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately
360 employees, the majority of whom were based in
the PRC. Employee benefit expenses for the year were
HK$178.7 million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre
and competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy
and performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration
policies are largely in line with industry practices,
and are formulated on the basis of performance and
experience and will be reviewed regularly. Bonuses and
other merit payments are linked with the performance
of the Group and of the individuals as incentive to
optimise performance.
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The Company is committed to achieving the best
corporate governance practices by emphasising
its accountability, transparency, independence,
responsibility and fairness. The Company is dedicated
to exercise corporate governance through regular
reviews of its adopted practices with reference to the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable
code provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2017. The following summarises the
corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2017, the Board consists of two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. The roles
of the chairman of the Board are segregated from
the managing director. The chairman of the Board is
responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning
of the Board and the strategic development of the
Group. The managing director is delegated with
the authority and responsibility for managing the
Group’s business, and the implementation of the
Group’s strategies in achieving the overall business
objectives. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2017, the position of the chairman of the Board and
the managing director were not held by the same
individual. As at 31 December 2017, the position
of the chairman of the Board and the managing
director were held separately by Mr. Dong Haoran
and Mr. Liu Hongzhou, respectively. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability. There are no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among the
directors (including the chairman of the Board and the
managing director).
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All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration
of the directors are determined with reference to their
duties, responsibilities, and to the prevailing market
conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long
term business objectives, strategies and plans, and
to monitor and control the operating and financial
performance of the Group. The day-to-day operations
and implementation of business objectives are
delegated to the managing director. The management
is delegated with the necessary authority to carry out
daily operations and duties.

The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including developing and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for appointing new directors
to fill any vacancy on the Board. The Board will
consider whether the candidate’s skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives (including but is not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
or professional experience to achieve the diversity of
members of the Board) meet the requirements of the
Company when considering a nomination.
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All directors have actively participated in the review
and monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board
meets regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between
scheduled meetings, the senior management of the
Group provides information to directors on a regular
basis regarding the activities and development in
the businesses of the Group. The directors have full
access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. With respect to regular meetings
of the Board, the directors will be given written notice
of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than
3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors will be given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. If a director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting. Independent non-executive directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should be present at that
Board meeting. All minutes of Board and Board
committee meetings are kept by the company secretary
of the Company for record with sufficient details of
the matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or Board committee, including any concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed by any director.
These minutes are available for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.
The attendance record of the directors at the general
meeting(s), Board and Board committee meetings held
in 2017 are set out on page 28 of this annual report.
Besides providing sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group, all directors have disclosed to the
Company the number and nature of the offices held
in other public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, and updated the Company
on any subsequent changes in a timely manner.
Appropriate insurance on directors’ liabilities have been
in force to protect the directors from their risk exposure
arising from the business of the Group.

EEEHRB2EARMN MERARAERK -E=X
eEHEHER  ABFARELOR - REH
ERLE AEENSAEREEERAEERD
MESLRERTHAEFEEEN -EFAKER
ERAKENENRAEEENER TSREL
EXEBR BERBARFAXN REFEHES
EeEMs EFFEIRITORAESERS
BFEMLEERMN IR =ZREBETEIEN
PR - REMEREMS  EEERIENIS
AN HEERTESERRNBNY FTEFE
ESELMERNSFEATFAESERREAN
NMNEBR FEFESUNBTELCESESSERS
ANEE - ERXRHGTPAGREBRTHREAGLEE
ANBENBLIFRTESTEZLFABANESS
BF  ARAARWERBETESTERESEEE
CTHERALE XSERLHEHESTERES
REEMERFTHRLETANIRE FRAF A
i HPERZERESFROMNEAEBRKEN
REBBR -EEEMESTHLEEBRN  BAH
FHRSRCBEHEATAAENKREMN - 88
ER2017TFBT2RRRE EFSREFZEER
SERIHELHRCHIINAFRE28ER - K
ERENHEAREMENABERNRENFH
S FTBESFHERAARABRBEERNEMARA
AIARBEERBCHE T - URAEMEX
APE - WRKRAARRREEMERZEE - &
EEFLAREAZAZERREARREARAE
ERAARKREBEBFEE ZER

16 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2017



The directors acknowledge the need to continue
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
for making contributions to the Company. The
participation by individual directors in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company in 2017 is set out in the
table below.
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Attending
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regulatory seminars/

updates programmes

B & SHEIR
EERE HEER
EFER WHEg EH

Non-executive directors kHTES
Dong Haoran EER
Jiang Juncheng ZEK
Executive directors HITES
Ma Yuchuan* BE)I*

Liu Hongzhou 24T M

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTESE

Chan Kay Cheung BRIE S
Qiu Hongsheng ER L&
Chow Chan Lum AR

v
v

AN NN

4
4

AN

*  Resigned in January 2018

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the company
secretary of the Company, Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant training.

*  JR20184F 1 ABFT
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the
directors’ securities transactions. All directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2017, the remuneration and
nomination committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu Hongsheng,
Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Chow Chan Lum,
and an executive director Mr. Ma Yuchuan. Mr. Qiu
Hongsheng is the chairman of the remuneration and
nomination committee. The terms of reference of
the remuneration and nomination committee, which
described its authority and duties, is available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and the website of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include reviewing and
recommending to the Board the remuneration
policy and the remuneration of the directors and
the senior management, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’'s corporate goals and objectives,
to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, responsible for identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees
as directors, making recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to appointment or re-appointment
of directors, succession planning for directors and
assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.
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In making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the composition of the Board, the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of directors, the
remuneration and nomination committee will also give
adequate consideration, including but not limited to,
the following:

(i) members of the Board have a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s
business;

(i) the Board includes a balanced composition of
directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement;

(iii) taking into account the Group’s own business
model and specific needs, through consideration
of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience to achieve
the diversity of members of the Board; and

(iv) the appointment of new directors follows a
formal, considered and transparent procedure.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held two meetings. The attendance record
of the committee members at these meetings are
set out on page 28 of this annual report. The work
performed by the remuneration and nomination
committee during the year included reviewing the
remuneration policy and the remuneration of the
directors and the senior management, assessing
performance of the executive directors, determining
the remuneration of the executive directors, reviewing
the policy for the nomination of directors, making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the number
of senior management (excluding directors) whose
remuneration fell within the band from HK$nil
up to HK$1,000,000, from HK$1,000,001 up to
HK$1,500,000, and from HK$1,500,001 up to
HK$2,000,000 were one, two and one respectively.
Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out on pages 173 to
174 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung,
Mr. Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Chow Chan Lum. Mr.
Chan Kay Cheung is the chairman of the audit
committee. The members have extensive experience in
financial matters. The terms of reference of the audit
committee, which described its authority and duties,
is available on the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the website of the Company.

The audit committee provides an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and oversees
and conducts an annual review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and ensures the external auditor are
independent and the effectiveness of the audit process.
The audit committee examines all matters relating
to the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group, auditing functions, internal controls, risk
management and financial reporting. External auditor
and the directors are invited to attend the committee
meetings as and when necessary. The audit committee
meets at least twice a year with the external auditor.
The audit committee also serves as a channel of
communication between the Board and the external
auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two
meetings. The attendance record of the committee
members at these meetings are set out on page 28
of this annual report. The work performed by the
audit committee during the year included reviewing
the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017.
The audit committee has also reviewed the audit plan
and approach of the external auditor and monitored
the progress and results of the audit regularly. The
audit committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s internal audit department is responsible
for carrying out analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The tasks of
the department include:

o review all aspects of the Group’s activities and
internal controls;

o comprehensive audits of the practices, procedures,
expenditure and internal controls of all business
and support units and subsidiaries on a regular
basis; and

o special reviews of areas of concern identified by
management or the audit committee.

The internal audit department reports directly to the
audit committee and the managing director and has
direct access to the Board through the chairman of
the audit committee. The internal audit department
may directly report to the audit committee without
consulting the management.

The internal audit department issued reports to senior
management covering various operational and financial
units of the Group. The internal audit department also
conducted reviews of major projects and contracts
as well as areas of concern, if any, identified by
management.

Concerns which have been reported by the internal
audit department were monitored regularly by
management and by the audit committee until
corrective measures have been implemented.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees
payable to the Company’s external auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out below:

S BS % B A

REZE2017F12831HIEFE > AR 7 M EHH
B AR EREMEZMIEEZRE R AR T INE
ZHAMEAMBRASHIOT

2017
201745
HK$'000
FET
Audit services EZRT 2,043
Non-audit services (included tax matters, IEEZRY (BREMEEIE
review and other reporting services) HERREMBRRE) 578
2,621
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT EERIE:T

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement
from the auditor about its responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is set out on
pages 77 to 84 of this annual report. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017, the Board had selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently and had made
prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates and
had prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems,
including reviewing their effectiveness annually. The
audit committee is delegated by the Board with the
responsibility to oversee independently the Group's
financial, risk management and internal control systems
and reports to the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
financial and accounting records, ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and identifying
and managing the key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance. As the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, they can only be expected to provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, while
the audit committee oversees the actions of the
management and review the effectiveness of the
systems that have been put in place. Systems and
procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on major types of risk the Group
encounters. Operational units are responsible for
identifying the potential risks, and analysing and
evaluating the significance of such risks. Operational
units also assess the adequacy of existing controls
and implement treatment plans to mitigate such risks
and report the view of risks and proposal for the
enhancement of the existing systems and procedures
regularly to the audit committee, and ultimately to the
Board on major findings. The audit committee reviews
the existing risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and makes appropriate
enhancement when necessary, with a view to improve
the effectiveness of such systems.

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited, an
independent advisory firm, to conduct an annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2017. The scope of review included the

internal control systems of the Group at the entity
level, as well as key business processes of its principal
subsidiary, Huada Electronics, covering all material

controls such as financial, operational and compliance
controls of the Group. The review results have been
reported to the audit committee and the Board. The
Board is satisfied that these systems were effective and
adequate throughout the year ended 31 December
2017. In this regard, to enhance the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the Group has begun to implement the
recommendations put forward by Tricor Services
Limited.
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The audit committee has also held discussion with
the Group’s external auditor, to ensure that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated
by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards.

The Board has reviewed and ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Board is responsible for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Company
has established and implemented procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders
to apprehend the latest position of the Group. These
procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review
on a regular basis with reference to the Listing Rules,
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and in accordance
with established procedures.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
registered shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of the
Company to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such special general
meeting shall be held within two months from the date
of deposit of such requisition.
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The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to convene a special general meeting
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory and regulatory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the written
requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a special general meeting will not be
convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene
a special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a special general meeting, but any special general
meeting so convened shall be held within three months
from the date of deposit of such requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), either any number of the registered
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or
not less than 100 registered shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.
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The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the registered shareholders
concerned in accordance with the statutory and
regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition; and where an annual general meeting is
called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by
the registered shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
written requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’'s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting wishes to propose a person other than
a director of the Company for election as a director
at the general meeting must validly serve (1) his/her
written notice of intention to propose a candidate
for election as a director at the general meeting; (2)
a written notice signed by the nominated candidate
of the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the
nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to
the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of
the Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecht.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A copy of the constitutional documents of the
Company is available on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the website of
the Company. There was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year.
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CEEREE
ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS SRLERHE
Details of the director’'s attendance at general TREINSEZTR2017TFRNEHEREAE - ES
meetings, Board and Board committee meetings held in erhEELTEEER2HE
2017 are set out in the table below:
Meetings attended/held
HERE/ 8ER
Remuneration
and
nomination
Audit committee
committee Rk General
Note Board** 8 o meetings
k33 Ezagw ZEg ZE®g RRAE
Non-executive directors FHTES
Dong Haoran EEN 6/6* e
Jiang Juncheng ZEK 6/6 17
Executive directors HTEE
Ma Yuchuan SE 1 5/5 1N 1
Liu Hongzhou 2I50M 5/5 1" 17
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Chan Kay Cheung BiEE 6/6 AR 212 17
Qiu Hongsheng g 6/6 22 22* 1/1
Chow Chan Lum B 6/6 22 22 17
* Chairman & *E
**  Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board * AR NEFRCDFECHEFSFREULRBANTEFN
met with non-executive directors (including independent ?E/@E%W/ﬁﬁ TER THNTEE (BIFETHH
non-executive directors) without executive directors and TTEE)
management present.
Note: Kiat:
1. Resigned in January 2018 1. R2018%F1 85T
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1. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
MANAGEMENT

1.1 Corporate social responsibility
philosophy

The Group has all along been insisting on the
development of information industry and safeguarding
of information safety as its own responsibility. By
adhering to the “be innovative in electronics of China,
lead the information in the future” responsibility
philosophy, and incorporating it into the Group’s
strategic and operational practice, the Group strives
to maximise the comprehensive benefits of economy,
environment and society, and has always been a good
corporate citizen.

1.2 Participation of stakeholders

The communication with and the participation
of stakeholders are essential components of the
sustainable development of enterprises. The Group
operates principally in the PRC. The key stakeholders of
the Group are its shareholders, customers, employees,
government and regulatory authorities, business
partners, communities and the public as well as the
ecological environment. Through communication
with its stakeholders, the Group understands their
expectations and advices, so as to provide guidelines
for the Group’s operational decision-making and make
more positive contributions to sustain the industrial and
social development.
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TEHEEE®RE

2. PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group reviews regularly the management systems
regarding the safety, advertisement, labels and privacies
of its products and services by adhering to the “make
innovations through reform and cherish integrity
towards the world” operation philosophy, and with
reference to local laws and regulations relevant to
our products and services such as the Standardisation
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Intellectual
Property Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China as well as the industrial policies, and continues
to enhance the corresponding information safety
management system, product quality control system,
intellectual property management system and customer
service system. In 2017, there was no litigation against
the Group or violation of laws and regulations by the
Group in relation to the safety, advertisement, labels
and privacies of its products and services.

2.1 Information safety

With global informationisation entering into a new
stage of comprehensive deepening and innovative
reform, the economic and social development is
increasingly dependent on information networks and
information systems, and thus information safety has
become one of the most serious challenges to the
current electronic information industry.

As the practitioner and facilitator of the smart card
chips design industry in the PRC, the Group strives
for the maintenance of information safety as its own
responsibility, concerns with the laws and regulations
regarding information safety management such as the
Requirements for the Management of Safety Production
of Electronic Information Industry, the Safety Protection
of Computer Information System Regulation of the
People’s Republic of China, the Network Security Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulations for
the Management of Commercial Cryptographic, etc.,
focuses on independent research and development
of autonomous security smart card chips while
building a safe operating environment, strives to be
the cornerstone of China’s information technology
modernisation and information safety.
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J Development of security chip

The Group focuses on the business of design of security
smart card chips. As the practitioner and facilitator
of the smart card chips technology in the PRC, the
Group owns the globally advanced and domestic
leading security attack and defense technology,
covering the protection technology at levels such
as the system level, algorithm level, circuit level and
layout level, with technologies such as side channel
attack, malfunction-injection attack and physical attack
technologies, and forming a set of comprehensive
safety management system.

A number of high-end security control chips of the
Group was accredited with security certification such as
the domestic EAL4+ Certificate, international CCEALS5+
Certificate (the highest security certification level that
can be achieved currently for domestic smart card
products); EMVCo Certificate, etc., which lead the
domestic security chip technology, attain international
level, and demonstrate China’s “Smart Card Chips”
capability.

In 2017, regarding the research and development,
and the industrialisation of security chips, Huada
Electronics has been awarded with grants from
government projects, such as Major National Science
and Technology Projects, High-grade, Precision and
Advanced Projects of the Beijing Municipal Commission
of Economy and Information Technology, the Beijing
High and New Technology Achievement Transformation
Project, etc. The aggregate approved grants amounted
to approximately RMB36 million.

e  Safe operating environment

While focusing on the development of smart card chips
with high security and high reliability, the Group also
pays attention to physical environment security, that is,
protecting computer network equipment and facilities
from being destroyed by accidents such as earthquakes,
floods, as well as human acts. The Group established
a series of physical security management system, such
as the Procedures for the Physical Security Control, the
Measures for the Management of Security Facilities,
the Control Code for Central Control Room, the
Measures for the Management of Security Officer, etc.,
for protecting the design and development of security
smart card chips.
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The Group established an information safety
management system with reference to the
requirements such as the Information Technology -
Security Technology — Information Safety Management
System - Requirements (ISO/IEC 27001), the
Information Technology — Security Technology -
Practical Rules for Information Safety Management
(ISO/IEC 27002), etc.

J National information safety

As the core of electronic information industry,
integrated circuit is playing an increasingly important
role in aspects such as promoting economic
development and social progress, protecting national
security, etc. With information safety rising gradually to
become a national strategy, the Group will continue to
follow the pace of national development, adhere to the
mission of safeguarding national information safety,
focus on the development of electronic information
industry, continue to launch domestic-made smart card
chips with independent intellectual property rights, and
keep on accumulating its core technologies.

While strengthening its internal management, the
Group develops diversified products so as to provide
better professional smart cards and embedded security
chips and related solutions. At the same time, the
Group also promotes its domestic-made smart card
chips which are widely used in sectors such as financial
payment, social security, resident health, public
transportation, telecommunication, mobile payment,
network authentication, identity authentication, etc.,
and the emerging Internet of Things sector, so as to
safeguard the information safety of important national
information systems and key infrastructural networks,
and cast a firm “Great Wall” for China’s information
safety.
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o Promotion of security chips application for
financial payment to safequard national
information safety

In the financial payment sector, the security chip
series independently developed by Huada Electronics
has been widely put into application in E-banking by
the domestic commercial banks, such as Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of
China, etc. These applications have safeguarded the
information safety of important national information
systems and key infrastructural networks. During The
13th Annual Conference of E-banking in China in 2017,
Huada Electronics demonstrated its Bluetooth key
and SIM key solutions which have already established
wide applications, and endeavored in strengthening
the ability to safeguard information safety with the
financial sector in China, so as to continuously promote
the healthy and steady development of the E-banking
sector.

2.2 Quality management
o Quality management system

The integrated circuits design operation of the Group
comprises the design of smart card chips and the
development of application system. The Group is not
directly involved in aspects such as manufacturing,
assembling, transportation, etc., albeit adhering to the
tenet of “zero defect” in provision of products and
services to customers as well as the quality policy of
“catering for customers demand through continuous
innovation; striving for customers’ satisfaction
through the involvement of all staff”. The Group
advocates comprehensive quality management with the
involvement of all staffs, striving to control and improve
continuously the entire aspects of production of its
products.

The Group established a product quality management
system covering aspects such as product research
and development, production and processing
outsourcing, and quality inspection, in accordance with
the requirements of ISO9001 Quality Management
System, so as to meet the customers’ demands for
diversification, personalisation and refinement through
systematic management.
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The Group’s product quality management system
has been maintained to conform with the latest
requirements. The Group was first accredited with GB/T
19001-2000 - 1SO9001:2000 Quality Management
System Requirements compliance certificate by China
Electronics Quality System Certification Centre in
2003. It was also accredited with the upgrade version
certificate in 2009, and passed monitored inspections
and re-assessment certifications thereafter.

In 2017, the Group continued to improve quality
management and increased the frequency of
monitoring the implementation of quality objectives,
from once a year to once every six months to ensure
prompt detection of problems and timely improvement.
In addition, the Group strengthened the management
of supplier quality risks by conducting two-party audits
on the quality management systems of the two major
suppliers, and required the suppliers to rectify the
problems identified in the audits. For the key suppliers,
the Group required them to carry out failure mode and
effects analysis (FMEA) management on the related
product manufacturing and processing procedures
and equipments to identify risks and implement risk
treatment measures, so as to further ensure the quality
of the products provided by the suppliers.

o Quality inspection procedures

The Group conducted quality inspection on products
such as wafers, modules, cards, circuits, etc, that
are developed independently with procurement
and processing outsourced in accordance with the
requirements in respect of the quality inspection
operational process imposed by its product quality
control system. Inspections are performed by
professional inspectors in accordance with the
inspection specifications and practice guidelines, and
by using professional inspection equipment, so as to
avoid the delivery of sub-standard products. In addition,
the professional high-precision instruments used for
quality inspection are calibrated regularly to ensure the
accuracy of the inspection result.
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2.3 Intellectual property protection
o Intellectual property management system

The Group respects intellectual properties and regulates
the usage of intellectual properties from customers
and third parties. It also keeps all its business partners’
product’s technical information strictly confidential.
Moreover, the Group concerns about the protection of
its own intellectual properties, and issued the Measures
for the Management of Intellectual Properties for
the first time in 2003 and continues to improve and
amend it. The Group attaches importance to original
innovation and collective innovative capabilities,
scientific discovery and technology invention, and
integrates different related technologies to develop and
master more independent intellectual properties in key
industry sectors, so as to produce products with market
competitiveness.

The Measures for the Management of Intellectual
Properties clearly defines the responsibilities and
working procedures for all departments and personnel,
and states the detail requirements regarding the
evaluation, searching, retrieval and analysis of relevant
intellectual properties during the technology research
and development process, contract filing management,
intellectual properties ownership, protection and
application of intellectual properties, training and
incentive. The Measures for the Management of
Intellectual Properties promotes the formation of
innovation mechanism, and creates a regulated sound
environment with rules and precedents to follow for
the developing of intellectual properties.

In 2017, the Group revised its Measures for the
Management of Intellectual Properties and adopted
more detailed specifications on the application and
examination of intellectual properties. After obtaining
the title of “International Intellectual Property
Dominant Enterprise” in 2014, and three years of hard
work and experience accrued in intellectual properties,
Huada Electronics achieved the steady development of
intellectual properties from good to excellence, and
from excellence to applications, and was recognised
as the “National Intellectual Property Demonstration
Enterprises” in 2017.

TEHEEE®RE
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2.4 Customer service

J Customer service system

The Group adheres to the “users first and customers
foremost” philosophy and builds the global customer
service system to provide more convenient and better
quality service to customers. In addition, the Group has
site engineer teams with strong technical knowledge
to provide immediate professional technical services
to customers to solve their technical problems before,
during and after a purchase.

Customer Complaint Procedures are formulated by
the Group to assist customers to solve any issues
encountered after products are sold and during
usage, and any feedback from customers will be used
for on-going enhancement of service and product
quality. In addition, depending on the issue raised
by the customer, the Group will organise respective
specialists from the failure analysis team, product
development and design team, production and
outsourcing professional technical team, sales service
team, technical support team and project management
team to work together to analyse and identify the
fundamental causes of the issue, formulate rectifying
and precautionary measures, ensure the effectiveness
of such measures, and keep track of the customer’s
subsequent usage in the long run.

J Customer satisfaction survey

The Group attaches importance to customer
satisfaction survey and through the survey identifies key
factors affecting the satisfaction of customers so as to
enhance the quality of its services and products. The
Group sends out customer satisfaction questionnaires
to customers each year to understand customer’s
satisfaction, opinion and suggestions on its products’
or projects’ design quality, service quality, and pace
and capability in handling issues arose, and Customer
Satisfaction Surveillances and Measurements Evaluation
Report will be prepared summarising feedbacks from
customers and passed to respective departments for
on-going improvement of service standards.
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Statistics on product and service key performance indicators

EmEREEERERERERRT

2017 2016
Indicators BEE 2017 E 2016F &
Number of customer complaints received BEERRFEH 112 89
Percentage of customer complaints dealt with (%) BRI R R I8 R (%) 100 100
Customer satisfaction (%) B mEE (%) 95.95 95.50
3. EMPLOYEES 3. BT

The Group reviews and enhances regularly on the
management systems regarding its employees’ rights,
remuneration and benefits, recruitment and promotion,
training and development, working environment and
occupational health, child labour and forced labour
by adhering to the “responsibility orientated, attaches
importance to competent and rewards linked with
performance” talent philosophy, and with reference
to the industrial policies as well as local laws and
regulations relevant to employment such as the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Women's
Rights and Interests Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Regulations on Paid Annual
Leave for Employees. In 2017, there was no litigation
against the Group or violation of laws and regulations
by the Group in relation to employment, occupational
health and safety, child labour and forced labour.

3.1 Employment and employee benefits

e  Employment policy

The Group attaches importance to attracting and
fostering of talents, provides protection to the equal
rights of its employees on aspects such as terms of
employment, training, promotion and remuneration,
and ensures no discrimination against any person on
grounds such as gender, marital status, disability, age,
race, family conditions, nationality and religion. In
addition, the Group resolutely prohibits child labour
and all forced labour, so as to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations.
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The Group encourages its employees to introduce
talents with competitiveness, and incorporates the
respective incentive system in the Employee Handbook.
Employees introduce talents according to the demands
announced by the Group periodically, so as to assist
the Group in identifying talents who will benefit its
development, enhance the strength of the Group and
enlarge its talent pool.

At the same time, the Group respects employees’
rights to rest and take leave, and implements the
standard working hours system and has formulated the
Regulations for the Management of Leave Application
and Leave Attendance so as to provide leave periods
such as annual leave, maternity leave, marriage leave,
family visit leave and funeral leave, etc., for its staff
as stipulated by the national or local requirements. In
2017, the Group amended the above regulations to
further stipulate the management of matters such as
employee leave application, leave and attendance, etc.

AEEZBEETHEBAERFINOATL © HSHEH
RBHEREXC(ELFM) - BBTEHEMAS
FR - BIREBEFREBAT EMALRKES
BREEBEROAS BRAKEESN EAATS
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Statistics on employment key performance indicators

EREEHEBREARERERT

2017 2016
Indicators ER 2017FE 20165 F
Number of employees BT AH 365 518
By gender: Male =R B 224 335
Female gl 141 183
By type of employment: Permanent RERERD L &5 [ 349 489
Secondment 85 7% I 38 16 29
By age group: > 50 LERAR 508% A £ 18 27
30 to 50 30E505% 286 377
< 30 303K A T 61 114
By geographical region: Mainland China 1ZHib[& : REET 360 497
Overseas’ =2 = 5 21
Employee turnover rate (%) BT HRAE (%) 31 37
By gender: Male IR - B 34 39
Female gl 25 32
By age group: > 50 LERAER 508% A k£ 14 30
30 to 50 30E505% 19 37
< 30 3058 A T 42 40
By geographical region: Mainland China 1&#[& : FEET 31 37
Overseas’ =2 = 0 0
Note: HaE -
1. Including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. 1. ARG BMAKEE -
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o Remuneration and benefits policies

The Group attaches importance to attracting, retaining
and motivating talents and has established a fair and
competitive remuneration and benefits policies covering
all employees with various benefit measures, motivating
them to pursue development with the Group hand in
hand. The Group makes full payments of various social
insurances for employees in a timely manner according
to the relevant PRC and local laws and regulations, and
also has established enterprise annuity so as to provide
employees with supplemental pension security.

In addition, the Group motivated employees with
outstanding performance through various schemes such
as the Salary Increment Scheme, etc. Among them, the
Salary Increment Scheme consists of two aspects, one
is to adjust the salary of certain employees who got
promotion based on qualification requirements, the
other is to make a general adjustment on employee
salary after taking into account of the external factors
such as increase in social securities basis, inflation, etc.

o Communication and caring

An effective employee communication is important to
the decision-making and enterprise development. The
Group strives to establish an open working culture, and
strengthen the communication between employees and
management. It also sets up various communication
channels to understand employees’ opinions, so
as to create a frank and an open communication
atmosphere.

The Group cares and supports every employee who is
in need. Through proactively carrying out multi-level
and multi-channel employee caring activities, the Group
ensures paying visit for those employees suffered from
injuries and sickness, attending employees’ wedding
ceremony and funeral ceremony and helping employees
who are in difficulties. In addition, the Group carries
out consolatory activities on public holiday strictly in
accordance with the relevant requirement of the China
Federation of Trade Unions.
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In 2017, Huada Electronics completed the general
election of its trade union which serves as a key
organisation for safeguarding the rights and interests
of employees and carrying out the work of employee
caring. In the “First of July” special difficulties
alleviation and consolation campaign, the party branch
and the trade union consoled 11 retired and sick
employees. After learning of the condition of seriously-
il employees, Huada Electronics had initiated a staff
fund-raising campaign to ease timely the financial
burden of medical expenses on these employees,
provided support for these employees to receive timely
medical treatments.

3.2 Training and development
J Employee training

Enhancing employees’ growth is a significant
contribution for corporate development. The
Group’s employee training divided into three levels,
corporate level, departmental level and individual
level. The corporate level trainings focus mainly on
cross-departmental and internal all-purpose training,
such as new employee training, quality and safety
requirements training. Departmental level trainings
focus mainly on enhancing knowledge and skills in
specific departmental professional areas. Trainings for
individuals act as a useful supplement to the above
two.

Upon completion of a 12 months services, every
employee is entitled to an individual training allowance
of up to RMB3,000 per person per year starting from
the 13th month onwards. Such allowance can be used
for trainings as designated by the Group, or can be
used in relation to employee’s job-related trainings at
his/her own choice subject to prior approval by the
Group.

ERBEFR0MI7TF XTI EREER T2
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Statistics on employees’ training key performance indicators

STRIHRBAREARERGT

2017 2016
Indicators BEE 2017 E 2016F &
Employees’ training coverage rate (%) ETHEIBER (%) 81 75
By gender: Male ZMRl: BM 80 79
Female el 83 74
By grade:  Senior management B =RERE 91 95
Middle-management PRERE 76 91
General = 82 73

Employees’ average number of hours of 8 T &% AHEZHFI
training per person per year GRS SN 11 21
By gender: Male miR . B 10 20
Female ol 11 21

o Occupational development

B3R B/R

The Group implements a qualification management
system and establishes an occupational development
channel to provide an important basis for employee’s
promotion and salary increment. The Group implements
dual channel development path for the technicians that
accounts over 60% of the Group’s total headcount. The
technicians are divided into six grades, those who have
reached grade four can select either the management
line or the technical line. In the technical line, they
can become technical expert, system engineer, etc.,
and in the management line, they can enter into the
administrative management or project management
field. In 2017, the Group released a qualification
model for marketing personnel to further improve the
qualification management system which serves as a
basis for salary rank and performance requirements of
each position.

AEBEERTRERERGE BUBREER
BE RETEMR  REHFEHEBKE - YRS
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3.3 Health and safety

e Production safety management

The Group has all along been insisting on the
“safety first, focus on prevention and manage
comprehensively” safety philosophy. The Group
managed its production safety with reference to the
principle of the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and by focusing on tackling the
potential security risks, and aiming at preventing and
avoiding the occurrence of material safety incidents.
The Group also regularly arranges its employees for
health check and purchases medical insurance for
them.

In November 2017, Huada Electronics conducted a fire
evacuation drill event lasting for 2 hours, during which
employees conducted emergency evacuation, simulated
the fire escape tent experience and conducted fire
extinguisher discharging drills. They also attended a
teaching session for casualty rescue. A total of 329
employees participated in the drill. In the same month,
Beijing office’s staff also took part in fire evacuation
drills organised by the property management company
of the building, which further enhances employees’
awareness of safety and self-help capability and
improves their ability to respond to unexpected
incidents.

J Quality working environment

Quality working environment has a direct impact on the
physical and mental health and efficiency of employees.
Based on the “people-orientated” philosophy, the
Group is committed to provide and maintain a warm,
comfortable, healthy and safe working environment for
its employees. Huada Electronics has set up a nursery
room, a library and a recreation area in its office, so as
to create a quality office arena.

In 2017, in order to further create a safe and healthy
office environment, the Group launched a series of new
initiative such as equipped safety packs in its offices,
clarified the requirements for safe use of electrical
appliances, installed fresh air system for new office in
response to the air quality conditions in Beijing, etc. In
addition, the Group purchased traffic safety insurance
for its employees (such as insurance for employee
travelling on planes and cars, etc.) to provide coverage
for safe travel.
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o Fabulous employee activities

The Group has all along been emphasising on
improving corporate culture, facilitating teamwork and
cultural integration, and enriching employees’ cultural
life through organising various activities.

Summary of the Group’s employee activities in
2017

< “Brisk Walking at Olympic Forest Park” — A brisk
walking event for employees

<  "Be a Charm Girl” — An event for the 8th March
Women's Day

<  “Blooming Youth” — An event for the May Fourth
Youth's Day

<  "Promoting Reading and Recommending Books
for Huada” campaign

<  "You Are Not Alone” — A family open day event

< A basketball league between Huada Electronics
and other enterprises

TEHEEE®RE
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Statistics on employees’ occupational health and safety key performance indicators

ETRXREEZZHBERRERERST

2017 2016
Indicators BB 20175 E 20165 E
Number of work-related fatalities B T /ERR ML T A ZR 0 0
Number of reportable injuries ATHRENTERE 1 0

Note: The work-related injury was classified as the
lowest degree of disability in accordance
with the relevant standard.

4. COMPLIANCE OPERATION

The Group considers the compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of an enterprise. The
Group reviews and enhances regularly the management
systems regarding its supply chain management,
risk management and anti-commercial bribery with
reference to the local laws and regulations relevant to
the compliance operation such as the Company Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China, as well as the
industrial policies. In 2017, there were no occurrence
of any confirmed corruption incident related to the
Group or its employees, nor were there any public legal
proceedings against the Group or its employees.
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4.1 Supply chain management

J Management and control procedures on suppliers

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
design of integrated circuit chips, our major suppliers
are integrated circuit chips manufacturers. The effective
management on suppliers during the course of the
Group’s development can help the Group to reduce its
costs and cooperation risk, improve the quality of its
products and services, and build up a quality brand.
As such, the Group establishes the Management
and Control Procedures on Suppliers setting out
the requirement for the selection, evaluation and
management for production suppliers. In particular, it
sets out the detail guiding principles for aspects such
as selection of suppliers, approval, daily management,
subsequent evaluation, etc., so as to ensure the
long-term and stable provision of reliable products and
services by the suppliers.

In addition, the Group establishes the Procurement
and Outsourcing Control Procedures, setting out
the requirements for the procedures and rules
for managing the production procurement and
outsourcing. The procedures provide the definitions
and corresponding operational requirements for
aspects such as requirement planning, order formation
and approval, procurement implementation, quality
inspection, as well as in-stock settlement, etc., so
as to ensure the materials and products procured
and outsourced comply with the requirements. The
Group requires the suppliers to provide true and valid,
and compliance with the requirements of laws and
regulations qualification documents, and upon the
request of the customers requires certain suppliers to
provide RoHS report.
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o Periodic review on suppliers

The Group carries out regular review on its approved
suppliers each year. The review on the approved
suppliers is based on criteria such as the availability of
the supply of goods in previous year, the requirement
planning for the coming year, etc. Based on the results
of the review, the Group will adjust the eligibility
and grading of its suppliers accordingly and compile
a revised list of approved suppliers for the next year.
In addition, in the event that an approved supplier
has no business dealing with the Group for the
past 3 consecutive years, the Group will cancel the
qualification of such supplier.

TEHEEE®RE
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Statistics on supply chain management key performance indicators

HEEEEABERERERS

2017 2016

Indicators BE 20175 E 20165 F
Number of suppliers HEREE (X) 59 28
By geographical region R R

Mainland China A 57 25

Overseas’ =PI 2 3
Note: Btaz -
1. Including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. 1. 2EF RMFREE-

4.2 Anti-corruption
o Anti-corruption management system

The Group adheres to the “law abiding and
establishing creditability, advocating honesty and
nuturing people” integrity philosophy. In order to
further regulate the monitoring of corporate efficiency,
improve corporate governance, facilitate operating
management to discharge their responsibilities
properly, improve corporate efficiency, and achieve
value maintenance and appreciation of assets, the
Group established the Measures for the Management
of Efficiency Monitoring in 2016.
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In order to regulate the gift accepting arrangement
during business interactions on behalf of the Group,
eradicate the possibility of violating disciplines and
laws, and strengthen self-restraint and awareness
of preventing corruption, the Group announced and
implemented the Requirements on Handing Over of
Gifts Collected (Provisional) in 2016.

The Group adhered to the policy of “treating both
symptoms and root causes, applying punishment and
prevention for impeachments and putting focuses on
precautions” and consolidated the building of clean
party code of conduct and governance. In 2017, the
party committee of the Group signed the Obligation
Certificate for Comprehensive and Strict Administration
of the Party and Integrity with its subordinate party
branches, clarifying the responsibility of all the party
branches and sub-branches in the building of the
party’s code of conduct and integrity, and carried out
a self-evaluation in relation to vehicle usage, usage of
office space by senior management, official receptions
and non-compliance with the requirements on usage
of mode of transport, etc. In the “Anti-corruption
Campaign” month, the Group organised the screening
of Corruption Fight Is Always Underway, a large-scale
anti-corruption documentary, for all employees to
improve their awareness of integrity and self-discipline.

J Complaint and whistle blowing management

In order to regulate the management of complaints
and whistle blowing reporting, the Group establishes
the Measures for the Management of Complaints and
Whistle Blowing. Employees of the Group and outsider
can report, in confidence, possible corporate or
individual improprieties matters regarding violation of
disciplines and laws during the course of operation to
either the respective department in charge or the audit
committee of the Company through letter, telephone,
internet and facsimile. The Group did not received any
complaint or whistle blowing disclosure in the past 3
years.
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5. ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to reducing the possible
adverse impact of our operations on the environment.
The Group reviews regularly on the environmental
protection management measures with reference to
local laws and regulations relevant to environment such
as the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the industrial policies, and
encourages employees to take responsible actions on
the environment and regularly provides employees with
relevant training. In 2017, there was no occurrence of
any environmental pollution incident, nor was there
any non-compliance event or complaint relating to
environmental protection that was material to the
Group.

The Group identifies major aspects and boundaries
of the operation that may cause environmental
impacts. Since the Group is principally engaged in the
business of design of integrated circuit chips and the
development of application system, the testing and
production aspects of the operation are completed
by other enterprises. The Group does not produce
any industrial waste water or emit any exhaust
gas. At present, the main focuses of the Group on
environmental protection are green product design and
energy conservation in the course of operation.

TEHEEE®RE
5. RE
A B B IS B R R R TR

2. .2Z(hEARHKL ﬂlh%ﬁ £R)FHIR
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TEHEEERE

Boundary of

Major environmental manag\ement N
impact areas EEER Manage:ent initiatives
TEREFETE The Group Thi::i?‘ply BRI
AR s
Emissions Industrial waste v o Suppliers are required to provide valid
7131587 water and qualification certificates in relation to sewage
exhaust gas and environmental treatment.
TREEKRER EXHEBRE SNRRRIEEEAESB
Hazardous waste v e The hazardous wastes generated by the
EEREEY) Group are mainly electronic wastes such
as used computers. Due to the relatively
small quantity at present, the Group either
temporarily stores such waste in a centralised
manner or sells such waste to the waste
recycling company to handle and did not
compile any statistics.
AEEEANBEEENIEREEETKSE
FREEEY  HRBERHERYD  HAEEER
EHRERSEEREEYmENAREE - I
REGGTHELS -
Non-hazardous v/ ] The non-hazardous wastes generated from
waste the operation of the Group are mainly waste
BREEEY paper and domestic wastes, etc. Paperless
office has been initiated to reduce paper
usage.
AEEEEBETEANEEEENIERRE
M EENRE  ARESCHORD B -
e The non-hazardous wastes generated by
the Group were handled by the property
management company and the Group is not
able to compile any statistics.
REEESANEERZMHIAMEERE AR
BRI AEEEEGAHEELS o
Greenhouse gases v/ o The greenhouse gas emissions generated
RERE from the operation of the Group are

mainly indirect emissions due to electricity
consumption. Greenhouse gas emissions have
been reduced through saving electricity.
FERELETELANAERBHNTIERE
BRESEMEERSN - BBMERRERE
BERR o
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Boundary of

TEHEEE®RE

Major environmental management
] S aArcas EEER Management initiatives
R . The suppl =]
TEREFETE The Group chaiFr’\p J BRI
rEE .
g
Use of resources  Energy v o Saving energy in offices.
BRER BEIR WNEfRE o
Water resources v/ J Saving water in offices.
KER WNEIK o
Packaging 4 v/ ° Customers are required to return the
materials packaging materials to supplier for recycling.
BEY ERERREDREY BMHERLERER

5.1 Conservation of resources

As the practitioner and facilitator of the smart card
chips design industry in the PRC, the Group minimise
the consumption of raw material such as silicon chip
used in subsequent manufacturing at the preliminary
stage of a product design, by continually improving the
design capacity, reducing the area of single smart card
chip and increasing the number of smart card chips that
can be produced on a single chip wafer.

For daily operation, the Group incorporated the
resources-conservation behaviors such as saving water
and saving energy by employees into the Code on the
Daily Conduct of Employees, requiring them to turn
off the lights when leaving work, turn off the water
tap readily, have the computer under standby mode
temporarily when not in use, turn off the monitor
readily, turn off the electric power supply when leaving
the office, etc. At the same time, the Group took the
initiative to convey the basic philosophy of saving water
to its employees by posting gentle reminders. The water
taps will be repaired in a timely manner if it is found
damaged, so as to reduce water resource wastage.
As the Group’s consumption of water resource mainly
arises from the operation of its offices, and currently
the Group’s water source is municipal water supply, it is
not facing any problem and risk in accessing sufficient
water source.

FIF -
5.1 BRNEIR
ERTEEERCARFTENERENED

E AEEFEBRBIRS RN BMNERT
FEE BERRESEEST EAELENER R

B RERRFRBERSBELEHNER R
KRB FE o

EEREETH  AKREKE THKEAEEER
BROTRIANCETIREITRARHA) BRETM
BIAERW  BEFRIKEESE  BERER RS
AFGHAE  BFHEEBRE  NIRFARAE
BMAERE - AR AKREEBRBARERH
2RBTEEMAMKNENER - B KH
SBERERFERE  RPKERRE - AEELK
BRABREIZRENMAZE - BAIANKE R
KR AT R AEK - AN T B SKEUE A 7KOR 77 T &Y
e N R o
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Product packaging materials of the Group consists of
cartons, black boxes, iron rings and stainless steel racks,
etc. The Group re-uses these black boxes, iron rings
and stainless steel racks to the extent that the hygiene
of such item is guaranteed, so as to reduce resources
wastage.

5.2 Reducing energy consumption

The energy consumption of the Group includes
electricity and gasoline. The work on reducing energy
consumption and emission is one of the important
missions of the Group in green business operation.
Through establishing the electricity detection system,
Huada Electronics monitored the use of electric
equipment in the office building real time, operated
relevant equipment directly, learned about the
malfunctioning timely and tackled them promptly, and
has turned the management of the entire power supply
system into more scientific and standardised, which in
turn has strengthened the reliability of power supply,
enhanced the efficiency of electricity consumption,
and reduced operation and maintenance costs. In
2017, the Group used independently controllable air
conditioners and installed water-cooled air conditioners
in the Beijing office building to further reduce energy
consumption in offices.

5.3 Reducing paper consumption

The Group advocates paperless office environment and
establishes the OA system to promote paperless office.
Through the OA system, the receiving and sending
of official documents, circulation of documents, and
sharing of departmental documents are all carried out
internally, so as to achieve paperless operation of office
process.

AEENERBREYMIZERAE B2 #HIR
MAFMBRE - Heh - IR ER - HRNAF
MR AEEERERBFSROERT #1716
RER > BMAPBRRE -

5.2 [R{KRERE

AEBERNEREEE M - FEER
BMOERTIERAREHEMREEETHNERTIE
Iz ERETBBRREYENRARS B
REERAOABSHAERGNERBR  BEESH
HEREETERE REEESEFR - LR
ETRE  EEEHRERANEENSBL R
fb-{mmamEAEE REAEXRE - BE
BITHENR - REBR2017FHIE R RE
NERRI B IEFIZER > TR TKER - #
—HRER QT EA R

5.3 B AK

REBREEMMCI D - WEZOAFR S HEEER
e ERERLERNARE - RS -
MPAXHAZE T EIBBOARRER R ARIE
ERCIRIE
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5.4 Green products

The Group’s products include smart card chips,
modules, circuits and cards. All products meet
the requirements of Restricting the Use of Certain
Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic
Equipment Directive (RoHs). In particular, the smart
card chips, modules and circuits also meet the
requirements of Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation
and Restriction of Chemicals (REACH) standards.

TEHEEE®RE

4 BEER

AEEESFEBRELH ﬁ%tﬂa B KH -
FTA Emiam e (R R TERRERER
REBEXHDHES >(R0HS);</\'EE13TSJ#‘
B EREARHE(CERMER - T E - KiE
IR #) (REACH) IZ#EZE S -

Statistics on environment key performance indicators

REAERRENERAT

Units 2017 2016
Indicators BE B 20176E 20165
Total greenhouse gas emissions’ BRERBHRE ton of CO, equivalent 1,307.85 1,371.57

* Scope 1 greenhouse gas emission * #ETAEREHNE

* Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission ¢ #E2AEREHNE

Greenhouse gas emissions per BYAKEEEHBERERE
square meter of floor area HmeE

Total electricity consumption BHREEE

Electricity consumption per BEAAREEEERES
square meter of floor area

Total water consumption? fBREKE?

Water consumption per YA REEER/AKE
square meter of floor area

Total fuel consumption? B mE’

Volume of paper used N E
in offices

Volume of packaging material used K MmERKBEMEE
for finished goods

Notes:

1. The total greenhouse gas emission was the sum of Scope 1
and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions. The Scope 1 and Scope
2 greenhouse gas emissions were calculated according to the
automobile fuel consumption data and electricity consumption
data respectively, together with the relevant emission factors.

2. The total water consumption did not include those of the
Group’s leased offices. It was not possible to identify the
specific water charges and water consumption of the leased
offices of the Group as the water charges were included in the
management fees of the property management company.

3. Total fuel consumption represents the fuel consumption of the
Group’s vehicles for office use.

W CO,E &

ton of CO, equivalent 49.24 87.96
W CO,E&E

ton of CO, equivalent 1,258.61 1,283.61
W CO,E&E

ton of CO, equivalent/m? 0.05 0.05
W CO,E 8/ FHXK
Mwh 1,550.85 1,582.24
KB
Kwh/m? 54.46 56.21
TEE /¥ K
m? 25,487 27,540
m>/m? 0.89 0.98
Litre 18,185.74  32,483.00
7t
ton 3.80 5.85
WA
ton 16 18
WA
Hiat
1. REEREBHNESHBE - BHMEM - &

&1 - Z/miﬁﬁ‘”?#ﬁﬁzs"%‘Mﬁﬁmﬁ/ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ REE
BERABEEREBETHE -

2. BEKETEAEBMZAAPRAEZFEKE - ARASE
EHARAEZKESEMEETEARIEERT ' B
AEEREE D KBFNEKE -

3. HEHERTEENPLMBHFEME o
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6. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group cares about community development, and
currently focuses on two areas: poverty alleviation and
care for exceptional children.

In 2017, the Group contributed RMB100,000 to the
poverty alleviation work in Xinjiang. Huada Electronics
has been paying attention to the development of
Beijing Guangai School since 2009. It insists on
participating in charitable fund raising events and
provides donations for Beijing Guangai School. Over
the years, Huada Electronics’ employees have been
providing the needed cash and material voluntarily,
so as to extend their care to Beijing Guangai School.
Every year, Huada Electronics’ employees visit Beijing
Guangai School to care for the children voluntarily
and interact with them. The objectives of Beijing
Guangai School is to save the orphans, help homeless
children to return home and go to school, and provide
psychosocial support for the left-behind children, help
them to formulate the correct values and views on life,
and keep a positive and progressive spirit to contribute
to the society in the future. In 2017, Huada Electronics’
employees continued to extend their care to the school
and sent livelihood and learning materials to the
students, solving their practical difficulties in learning
and living.

6. HTEERA

AEERIHERZER B TEETFRAMEEE
B KENEERKRRE -

AEER2017F I AEREBHREREARKIOE
T ERETH2009F 2S5 » RHBFIERERAE
BERNER BRHEAKEERETARERRIE
-ZHER BIERETHERIBEY  AXEE
RFBERBEE  THFEREAITELEBRET
MM THZFMETELCED - R ATER
EEMBITE  EPREZERBAZ  WHE
FTRE RPRBETOERERHE  EU LR
MEES  ALE  REBERR EOBEBRELR
BRAETEEEER - R2017F  EXETFE
THEERFELEE  REEXEEE BFY
E RPN EZTNEE ENERRE -

Statistics on community investment key performance indicators

HERAMBEREREERT

2017 2016
Indicators R 2017 E 2016F &
Total cash donations (RMB) Hepigezn (ARE) 100,000 200,000
Number of employees participated in BITEMEH2HEAH 10 20

voluntary services
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7. ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the corporate social responsibility report
issued by the Company. It addresses the actions taken
and the achievement made by the Group in respect
of sustainable development regarding economic,
environment, and social issues.

7.1 Basis of preparation

This report has been prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

7.2 Scope of the report

Organisational scope: this report covers China
Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”), and its subsidiaries, CEC Huada Electronic
Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”) and Shanghai
Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd, (collectively, the
“Group”).

Reporting period: from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017.

7.3 Data

Data disclosed in this report were extracted from the
Group’s original records in day-to-day operation or
financial reports.

7.4 Reliability assurance

The board of director of the Company guarantees
the contents of this report do not contain any false
information, misleading statement or material omission.
The Company engaged a professional firm to conduct
an retrieval on the Company, and its subsidiaries,
Huada Electronics and Shanghai Huahong Integrated
Circuit Co., Ltd, which are covered in this report, using
the database of The Institute of Public & Environmental
Affairs and Qingyue Database on Environmental
Information, and confirmed that there has not been
any negative record on environment for the reporting
period.

TEHEEE®RE

7. BRAE®RE

ARERARABEMOLCEHGETRS - HE
AEBELE REMMENAFHEZRTER
B B 17 B F0 3 B B9 B R

7.1 REEE

RBEANEBBARZABR AR TIENCGRE
HEMERBREEIID/BERERR -

7.2 HEHE

HEBERE: ARERENARBRPEEFERXN
MEERAR ([ARAL) - LEEMBARILR
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AR - 20171 B1HBE2017F12H31H -

7.3 BEHB
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| E -

7.4 Tl SEMRFE
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RECE REMRAKERER - ARAEH—
REXME  HRESROARBRENE R A
FRET LEFUERERARETARET
RBREMEPOMBRRENRFEIEER
R BRARNBETHAANERTE @GO -

FEETEANEAERAA 20175FH® 53



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEAEHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Haoran, aged 53, is the Chairman of
the Board. Mr. Dong graduated from Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Semiconductor
Devices and Physics, and is a professor level senior
engineer. Mr. Dong is a director and the general
manager of Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd (“Huada
Semiconductor”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company, an executive director of CEC Chitsing
Technology Co., Ltd (formerly known as China
Integrated Circuit Design Corp., Ltd) and an
executive director and the general manager of GTA
Semiconductor Co., Ltd, a fellow subsidiary of the
Company, and the chairman of Shanghai Belling Corp.,
Ltd (“Shanghai Belling”) (a company with its shares
listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Dong
joined Huada Electronics in 1988 and was the executive
director of Huada Electronics. Mr. Dong possesses
extensive knowledge and experience in the integrated
circuit design industry. Mr. Dong was appointed
director of the Company in February 2015.

Ms. Liu Jinmei, aged 48. Ms. Liu graduated from lJilin
University and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese
Language and obtained a Master’s degree of Business
Administration from Beijing Institute of Technology.
Ms. Liu is the assistant general manageress of Huada
Semiconductor, a director of Shanghai Belling (a
company with its shares listing on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange), and a director of Beijing Chipadvanced
Technology Inc. (“Chipadvanced Technology”) (a
company with its shares trading on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations in the PRC).
Ms. Liu was the marketing strategy manageress of
BOE Technology Group Co., Ltd and the marketing
manageress of China Huaxu Golden Card Co., Ltd.
Ms. Liu joined Huada Electronics in 2005 and was the
marketing manageress of Huada Electronics. Ms. Liu
was appointed director of the Company in January
2018.

FHUTES

EHEREE S35 EESEE -ELAEEER
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Juncheng, aged 42, is the Deputy Chairman
of the Board. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Central
University of Finance and Economics and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and received a
Master's degree in Professional Accounting, and also
obtained an Executive Master’'s degree of Business
Administration from School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University. Mr. Jiang is a
senior accountant, a Certified Public Accountant in the
PRC and a Certified Public Valuer in the PRC. Mr. Jiang
is the chief accountant of Huada Semiconductor
and the chairman of the supervisory committee of
Shanghai Belling (a company with its shares listing
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Jiang joined
Huada Electronics in 2002 and was the deputy general
manager and financial controller of Huada Electronics.
Mr. Jiang possess a wealth of experience in finance
and corporate management. Mr. Jiang was appointed
director of the Company in January 2016.

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 55, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the School of
International Business of Nanjing University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Business and Administration,
and is a senior engineer. Mr. Liu is the executive
director of Huada Electronics. Mr. Liu, having spent
much of his career in CEC, was a divisional deputy
director of the Asset Management Department of
CEC, an executive director and the deputy general
manager of Winfair Development Limited, a divisional
director of the Treasury Division of the Investment
Banking Department of CEC, the deputy general
manager of China Electronics Technology Development
Corporation, the deputy general manager of the Asset
Management Department of CEC, the deputy general
manager of the Company, a director of the General
Office of CEC, a director of Shenzhen SED Industry Co.,
Ltd (a company with its shares listing on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange), and the managing director of
Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu was
appointed director of the Company in October 2013.

EENREREEAEHE
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EENREREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 71. Mr. Chan is the vice
chairman of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited.
Mr. Chan was an executive director and the deputy
chief executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited.
Mr. Chan joined The Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965
and possesses extensive knowledge and experience in
the banking industry. Mr. Chan is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member of
the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing College,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a member of
The China Unionpay International Advisory Group and
an international senior economic consultant of The
People’s Government of Shaanxi Province. Mr. Chan
is also an independent non-executive director of Chu
Kong Shipping Enterprises (Group) Company Limited,
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Food
Investment Holdings Limited and SOCAM Development
Limited (all being companies with their shares listing
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan was
appointed director of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 53. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a Postgraduate degree
in Management Science and Engineering; and is a
Certified Public Valuer in the PRC, an International
Certified Senior Enterprise Risk Manager, a Certified
Dealmaker in the PRC, a senior economist and an asset
management intermediary. Mr. Qiu is an executive
director and the general manager of China Consultants
of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd and a
visiting professor of Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics. Mr. Qiu worked in 710 Research Institute
of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China as
an economic analyst for a number of years. Mr. Qiu
joined China Consultants of Advisory and Finance
Management Co., Ltd, a company directly managed
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, in 1994 and
focuses on management consulting and corporation
restructuring transactions. Mr. Qiu possesses a wealth
of professional knowledge and practical experiences in
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, strategic
integration, meticulous management, etc. Mr. Qiu
is also an independent director of China National
Software & Service Co., Ltd, AVIC Heavy Machinery
Co., Ltd, GRINM Advanced Materials Co., Ltd (all being
companies with their shares listing on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange), and Henan Kedi Dairy Co., Ltd (a
company with its shares listing on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Mr. Qiu was appointed director of the
Company in November 2012.
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Mr. Chow Chan Lum, aged 67. Mr. Chow graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in 1974,
received a Postgraduate Diploma in Accountancy
from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, United
Kingdom in 1975 and was awarded a Postgraduate
Diploma in China Law by the University of Macau in
1987. Mr. Chow has been a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland since 1979 and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is the precedent partner
of Wong Brothers & Co, Certified Public Accountants,
and a member of the Foreign Experts Consultative
Committee on China Independent Auditing Standards
of the PRC Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chow served on a
number of committees of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, including as the deputy
chairman of the Auditing & Assurance Standards
Committee, and a member of the Investigation Panel
and the Professional Standards Monitoring Committee,
and as president of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chow serves as an honorary advisor and
committee member of various social bodies, and
has been a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province,
the PRC from 1997 to 2012. Mr. Chow is also
an independent non-executive director of Maoye
International Holdings Limited, and has been an
independent non-executive director of China Aerospace
International Holdings Limited from 2002 to 2012
and Pak Tak International Limited from 2002 to 2014
(all being Hong Kong Main Board listed companies).
Mr. Chow was awarded the Medal of Honor by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC in 2013 and the Honorary Fellowship
of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts in
October 2017. Mr. Chow was appointed director of the
Company in June 2015.
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EENREREEAEHE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Qiuju, aged 51, is the financial controller
of the Company. Ms. Wang graduated from the
School of Economics of Xiamen University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Finance and is a senior
accountant. Ms. Wang is a director of CEOVU (a
company with its shares listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) and a director of Zhuhai Southern Software
Park Development Co., Ltd. Ms. Wang was head of the
Finance Department of Shenzhen SED Electronics Corp.,
head of the Finance Department, financial controller
and chief accountant of Shenzhen SED Electronics
Group Co., Ltd and the general manager of the
Finance Department of China Electronics International
Information Service Co., Ltd. Ms. Wang joined the
Company in March 2015.

Mr. Xiao Fei, aged 45, is the deputy general manager
of the Company. Mr. Xiao graduated from York
University of Canada with a Bachelor’s degree in
Computer Information Analysis. Mr. Xiao is responsible
for overseeing the Internet of Things business of the
Company. Mr. Xiao was the chief operating officer and
the deputy general manager of global marketing of
communication equipment manufacturing enterprise
and the Internet of Things enterprise, and possesses
extensive experience in the strategic planning and
marketing of the Internet of Things business. Mr. Xiao
was appointed deputy general manager of the
Company in February 2017.

Mr. Zhou Jiansuo, aged 44, is the executive deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhou graduated
from Harbin Institute of Technology and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Automatic Control, received a
Master’s degree in Navigation Guidance and Control
and a Doctorate degree in Control Theory and Control
Engineering. Mr. Zhou was a Postdoctoral Fellow at
Bern University of Applied Sciences on Mircoelectronics.
Mr. Zhou joined Huada Electronics in 2002, was the
deputy general manager of Huada Electronics and was
in charge of research and development of technology,
project management, major projects, etc. Mr. Zhou
possesses extensive theoretical knowledge and practical
experiences in the integrated circuit design industry.
Mr. Zhou was appointed executive deputy general
manager of the Company in March 2018.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 56, is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accounting from the University of Liverpool,
United Kingdom. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ng has many years of experience in
auditing, finance and administration. Mr. Ng joined the
Company in November 2008.
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The directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 9 June 2017, and the
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name and
the Certificate of Secondary Name of the Company
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda
on 15 August 2017 confirming the new names of
the Company were registered by the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda on 2 August 2017, the English
name of the Company has been changed from “China
Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited”
to “China Electronics Huada Technology Company
Limited”, and a new Chinese name “HFEEFZEK
B BBRZAR]" has been adopted as the Company's
secondary name in Bermuda to replace its existing
Chinese name “HFEIEFEREZERER AR with effect
from 2 August 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group is the design and sale
of integrated circuit chips. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 85 of this
annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK3.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: HK3.0 cents), amounting to a total
dividend of HK$60,896,000. The dividend is subject to
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2017, the issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,029,872,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each. Details of movements in the share
capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 25 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
89 of this annual report and Note 34 to the financial
statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$405,464,000 (2016:
HK$437,754,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 176 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and
analysis of the Group's performance for the year and
the outlook of its businesses are set out in the section
headed”Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 13 and on
pages 4 to 7 of this annual report, respectively. Such
discussions constitute an integral part of this report.
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The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including
the relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers. The Board believes that the employees
are one of the Group’s most important assets. The
Company will strive to ensure that the remuneration
level of employees is in line with industry practices
and prevailing market conditions, and remuneration
of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Being people-oriented, the Group
ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also
continues to improve and regularly review and update
its policies on remuneration and benefits, training, and
occupational health and safety.

In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a
long-term and stable relationship with the Group’s
customers and suppliers for the continuous success
and growth of the Group’s businesses. The Group
has an extensive sales network across the PRC and
to manage such network requires a close working
relationship with our customers directly and through
distributors, agents and other business partners.
The Group will continue to strengthen its customer
service to provide superior quality service to the users,
and strive to achieve the fastest response times and
highest customer satisfaction levels in the industry. The
Group's continuous effort to build trust and emphasise
mutual benefits with its customers and suppliers has
contributed to the long-term relationships with them.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACTORS

As nearly all of the Group’s revenue is attributable to
the market in the PRC, the results and performance of
the Group’s businesses depend on the growth of the
information technology sector in the PRC, particularly
the electronic information technology sector. Although
the information technology sector is demonstrating a
growing trend in the past which is in part supported by
favourable government policies, any negative trend in
the information technology sector or other restrictive
policies may materially and adversely affect the
business, financial condition and results of operation of
the Group.
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The PRC integrated circuit market is highly competitive
with relatively short product cycles, and is subject
to policies of the government. The Group’s results
of operation substantially depend on the successful
execution of its business strategy and development
plan to maintain its leading position in the design of
integrated circuit chips sector in the PRC. The Group
may face challenges in implementing its business
strategies, and its ability to achieve its goals may be
adversely affected by various factors, some of which
are beyond its control. If the Group is not able to
execute its business strategy and development plan, its
businesses, financial condition and results of operation
may be materially and adversely affected.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the industrial leaders in the design of
integrated circuit chips sector in the PRC, the
Company is committed to operating its business in
an environmentally-friendly manner. Although most
of the Group’s businesses are not subject to any
environmental protection rules and restrictions, the
Board believes that operating the Group’s businesses
in an environmentally-friendly manner is crucial to
fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities.

In order to maintain a high standard of staff awareness
of the relevant rules and requirements, the Group
offers periodical trainings to its key personnel. As a
result of the Group’s commitment to environmental
protection and through the implementation of
advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe
and environmentally-friendly operation during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has complied with the “comply or
explain”provisions set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2017. The Company has prepared an
environmental, social and governance report with
reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide, and is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Social Responsibility Report” on pages 29
to 53 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board believes that compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of a business and
attaches considerable importance to it. Furthermore,
as the shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company is also
subject to the rules and requirements under the Listing
Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"). To the best knowledge of the Board, during
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors
Dong Haoran (Chairman)
Liu Jinmei

(appointed on 15 January 2018)

Executive Directors

Jiang Juncheng (Deputy Chairman)
(re-designated from non-executive director to
executive director and appointed as Deputy Chairman
on 15 January 2018)

Liu Hongzhou (Managing Director)

Ma Yuchuan
(resigned on 15 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung

Qiu Hongsheng

Chow Chan Lum

Ms. Liu Jinmei was appointed as director by the Board
on 15 January 2018. Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the
bye-laws of the Company, Ms. Liu will hold office only
until the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer herself for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of
the Company, Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. lJiang
Juncheng will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.
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The Company has entered into a service contract
with each of the directors of the Company containing
terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, and observation
of the bye-laws of the Company. The directors of the
Company will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2017, Mr. Dong Haoran, a non-executive
director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board,
had personal interest (long position) in 4,672,420 shares
of the Company (representing 0.23% of the issued share
capital of the Company). Mr. Jiang Juncheng, an executive
director of the Company and the Deputy Chairman of the
Board, had personal interest (long position) in 1,139,420
shares of the Company (representing 0.06% of the
issued share capital of the Company). Save as disclosed
herein, none of the directors nor the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company or their respective
close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time
during the year had the Company or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
with any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been
entered into for the services provided by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 14 December 2016, Huada Electronics entered
into a subscription agreement with Chipadvanced
Technology, pursuant to which Chipadvanced
Technology has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue, and Huada Electronics has conditionally agreed
to subscribe in cash of 1,125,000 new shares in
Chipadvanced Technology for RMB4,500,000 (the
"Subscription”). Chipadvanced Technology has been a
professional integrated circuit testing service provider
for over ten years and is one of the service providers to
the Group. The Subscription is part of the fundraising
initiative on the part of Chipadvanced Technology
for the improvement of technical competence and
expansion of integrated circuit testing capacity. The
Company believes that committing to the Subscription
is in-line with the development strategies of the Group
and will bring long-term strategic benefits to the
Group.

Huada Electronics is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Huada Semiconductor is interested in
59.42% of the issued share capital of the Company
and indirectly held 45% of the issued shares in
Chipadvanced Technology. Huada Semiconductor
is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
is therefore a connected person of the Company.
Chipadvanced Technology is an associate of Huada
Semiconductor and is therefore a connected person of
the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company. Details of the
Subscription are set out in the announcement dated
14 December 2016. The Subscription was completed
in 24 January 2017 and the Group’s shareholding in
Chipadvanced Technology has increased from 10% to
10.36%.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 33
to the consolidated financial statements also fall under
the definition of “continuing connected transactions”

RIELETRRANERE @ K6 MBHRRMEEI3ME
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within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Details of BREFBEHANT
certain of these transactions which are subject to the
reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules are summarised as follows:
Transaction
amount
in 2017
R20175F
REeHE
Note HK$’'000
Type of transaction REZEH HaE FTHERT
Sale of products to the CEC Group MPREFEBKERRIHEEM ji(a) 168,092
Purchase of raw materials and modules from [RIFHE FEBE K SRR KE ii(b) 636,853
the CEC Group, provision of products BB RER kPEETEE
processing, testing and assembling services KB ARIEHEERMT -
by the CEC Group DA WS ES Y E
Rental received from the CEC Group MAREFEBKEQARKRES iv, v 1,217
Property management fee paid to the CEC F"J':P BEFEEKE iii, v 6,674
Group RAZNYEXERSE
Fees and commissions for financial services  [A] EP BEFEEKE 15
paid to the CEC Group RAZNUBERBE2FEELAS
Catering service fee paid to the CEC Group MHFEHEFEE Vi 3,702
KERRIX N ERREE
Notes: Haz
(i) China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC", together with its (i) R

(if)
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subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

On 26 June 2015, in order to streamline the existing continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the business
services agreement dated 7 May 2013, and to facilitate the
Group’s operation after completion of the acquisition of
95.64% equity interest in Shanghai Huahong Integrated
Circuit Co., Ltd (the “Huahong Acquisition”), the Company
entered into a business services agreement dated 26 June 2015
(the “2015-2018 Business Services Agreement”) with CEC
to regulate the terms of the proposed continuing connected
transactions and the caps of the transactions thereunder for
the period commencing from 5 February 2016 to 30 June
2018. Pursuant to the 2015-2018 Business Services Agreement,
the CEC Group provides products processing, testing and
assembling services to the Group, while the Group purchases
raw materials, modules, software and equipment from the CEC
Group and sells products to the CEC Group.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The 2015-2018 Business Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 19 November
2015, details of which are set out in the circular dated 27
October 2015.

(a) Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and
smart cards modules and chips to the CEC Group.

(b) Raw materials, modules, software and equipment
purchased from the CEC Group are for the Group's
research and development of integrated circuit cards,
smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to
the Group.

On 24 November 2014, the Company and CEC Rida Property
Management Co., Ltd (“CEC Rida”), a subsidiary of CEC,
entered into a master property management agreement
(the “Master Property Management Agreement”) pursuant
to which CEC Rida and its subsidiaries (“CEC Rida Group”)
shall from time to time provide property management
services to the Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2015 and ending on 31 December 2017.
The transactions contemplated under the Master Property
Management Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of the Master Property
Management Agreement and the related caps are set out in the
announcement dated 24 November 2014.

On 24 November 2014, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “Master Lease Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group shall from time to time lease
properties located within the PRC and owned by the Group
to the CEC Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2015 and ending on 31 December 2017. The
transactions contemplated under the Master Lease Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
Details of the Master Lease Agreement and the related caps are
set out in the announcement dated 24 November 2014.

The Company has subsequently revised the annual cap amounts
payable by the Group to the CEC Rida Group in respect of
the property management services under the Master Property
Management Agreement, and the annual cap amounts of rental
receivable by the Group from the CEC Group under the Master
Lease Agreement. Details of the revised caps are set out in the
announcement dated 18 May 2015.

On 18 May 2015, Huada Electronics and CEC Rida entered
into a catering services agreement (the “Catering Services
Agreement”) pursuant to which Huada Electronics will
engage CEC Rida to provide catering services for its staff
for a term commencing from 1 July 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017. The transactions contemplated under the
Catering Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of the Catering
Services Agreement and the related caps are set out in the
announcement dated 18 May 2015.

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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(vii)  On 18 May 2015, Huada Electronics and CEC Rida entered
into a transportation services agreement (the “Transportation
Services Agreement”) pursuant to which Huada Electronics
will engage CEC Rida to provide transportation services for
its staff for a term commencing from 1 July 2015 and ending
on 31 December 2017. The transactions contemplated under
the Transportation Services Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Details of the
Transportation Services Agreement and the related caps are set
out in the announcement dated 18 May 2015.

On 26 June 2015, in order to streamline the existing
continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the financial services agreement dated 7 May
2013 and the financial services agreement dated 11
October 2013, and to facilitate the Group’s operation
after completion of the Huahong Acquisition, the
Company entered into a financial services agreement
dated 26 June 2015 (the “2015-2018 Financial Services
Agreement”) with China Electronics Financial Co.,
Ltd (“CEC Finance"”), a subsidiary of CEC, to regulate
the terms of the proposed continuing connected
transactions and the caps of the transactions
thereunder for the period commencing from 5 February
2016 to 30 June 2018.

The 2015-2018 Financial Services Agreement and
the related caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 19 November 2015, details of which
are set out in the circular dated 27 October 2015.

Pursuant to the 2015-2018 Financial Services
Agreement, the maximum daily balance of deposits
(together with the interests accrued thereon)
maintained by the Group with CEC Finance shall
not exceed RMB780 million and the Group’s actual
balance of deposits (together with the interests accrued
thereon) with CEC Finance on any given day during
the year ended 31 December 2017 had not exceeded
such amount. For the provision of financial assistance,
the maximum amount of financial assistance provided
by CEC Finance to the Group shall not exceed RMB780
million on any given day and no financial assistance had
ever been granted to the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the above continuing connected
transactions. The above continuing connected
transactions have been reviewed by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In the opinion
of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, the above continuing connected transactions
were carried out in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
and were in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the
above continuing connected transactions, the auditor
of the Company has confirmed in its letter to the Board
that:

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved
by the Board;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

o nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded their
respective maximum aggregate annual value as
disclosed in the previous announcements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered
to have interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group:

EERNBFRE 2ER

RAFERARBEARER » THIARAESH
RASEEASEEKEESBBEBRBF A
BT F oS ER

Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity EENEHER
Yt BEREH BERZIEXK ZEBEME
Dong Haoran Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) Design and manufacture Director
BHER ERYER (M) of integrated circuits BF
ERERRE MEE
CEC Chitsing Technology Investment holdings Director
Co., Ltd (Note 1) REER 5=
REETRTERA R (H21)
Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman
EBBEEMFT) of integrated circuits BEER
SRERRE RS
Ma Yuchuan Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Director
SE EBBBMET) of integrated circuits 5=
ERERRET RBUE
Nanjing Micro One Electronics Inc Design and manufacture Chairman
(Note 1) of integrated circuits Bk
MRMBEETAERAR (HE1) SXRERRET REGE
Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Design and manufacture Director

Jiang Juncheng

Technology Co., Ltd (Note 1)
REEMEFRIRBRRA (A1)

Shanghai Belling (Note 1)

of integrated circuits 5=
ERER R RBE

Design and manufacture Chairman of the

ZEK BB &) of integrated circuits  supervisory committee
ERBRRT RS EER

Liu Jinmei Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Director

251 LBBRBE M) of integrated circuits EE
EREBRRET RBUE

Note: Btaz -

72

CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate. These companies are subsidiaries
or associates of CEC and engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

(1 FPHEEFEE/RRRZREERERR HEEFEHE
RRXREEFREMABMETEZZEERBEHE
o WERRRTREEFER ME QR KEE QB M
HEEWMBARSMEAR D AREERREXBEER
KRB BF XA B HEF 2SR ERBBET -
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The above mentioned competing businesses are
operated and managed by independent management
and administration. The Board exercises independent
judgment and is always acting for the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2017, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the directors
or chief executive of the Company) had notified the
Company that they had an interest of 5% or more in
the issued share capital of the Company:
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FPRZBEFREOHBLEREEMNITRABLE
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RZEBNZETE - Bt - AEBEFSURREAFE
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R2017F12A318 ' RIBEFHF L HAEKGIF336
GEARRRIZBEBFEZERZMAI T THAL( AR
REERZERITHRABRINENEARARAKSE
BERRABEBITRAS%KIA 2%

Number of
shares held or
attributable Percentage
EEREN of shareholding
Name of interested party BEREGEER gk =] BRBESE
China Electronics Corporation  China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 40.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([ CEC (BVI)])
Huada Semiconductor (Note?) ZEX+E§ (ff771) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
CEC (Note 2) hEEFER(M72) 1,206,180,000 59.42%

Notes:

(1) Huada Semiconductor holds 100% equity interest in CEC (BVI).
Pursuant to the SFO, Huada Semiconductor is deemed to be
interested in the 812,500,000 shares of the Company held by
CEC (BVI).

(2) CEC holds 100% equity interest in Huada Semiconductor.
Pursuant to the SFO, CEC is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Huada Semiconductor. The
Board regards CEC, a state-owned enterprise established under
the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company of
the Company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2017, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION
ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

According to the terms and conditions of the 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of
RMB2,750 million, CEC, a controlling shareholder of
the Company, is required to directly or indirectly own
and hold more than 50% of the outstanding shares of
the Company. The Bond was fully redeemed in January
2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for 60% of the Group's sales
for the year and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for 25% of the Group's
sales for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 87%
of the Group's purchases for the year and purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 40% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, CEC Group is the
beneficial owner of one of the five largest customers
and is the beneficial owner of two of the five largest
suppliers of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder (which
to the best knowledge of the Board owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 or
subsisted at 31 December 2017.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme
of the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 36 to the
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this report, the Company has undertaken
and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Group’s businesses
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2017.

DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
made donations amounting to HK$116,000 to specified
poverty alleviation projects in the PRC.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Board, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital are held by the
public and fulfills the requirement under the Listing
Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will hold the office of
auditor of the Company until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Board has resolved to recommend the appointment
of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company to
fill the vacancy following the expiration of the current
term of office of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor
of the Company. Such appointment is subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ELECTRONICS
HUADA TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China
Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 85 to 175, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017;

o the consolidated income statement for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended;

e  the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised
as follows:

o Going Concern
Key Audit Matter
Going Concern

Refer to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$1,258,113,000
primarily due to the fact that the Company had
short-term bank borrowings of approximately
HK$2,314,473,000 which were due for repayment
within one year.

The directors of the Company evaluated the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern based upon an
assessment of the financial resources available to the
Group, including the financial guarantee provided by
the ultimate holding company of the group, internally
generated funds, expected renewal and extension of
borrowings upon their maturities, and availability of
committed facilities. The directors considered that
there were sufficient financial resources available to
the Group to meet its financial liabilities as at and
when they fall due in the coming twelve months from
31 December 2017 and the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis.

In assessing the Group's ability to continue to operate
as a going concern the directors prepared a cash flow
forecast which required the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting the
Group's future revenue, operating expenses and capital
expenditure and in assessing the Group’s ability to
renew existing banking facilities.

We identified the assessment of going concern as a key
audit matter because the assessment of going concern
is dependent upon certain management assumptions
and judgements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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B AR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our

audit procedures to assess the going concern

assumption in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements included the following:

Evaluating the key assumptions of cash flow
prediction (including, revenue growth rate, gross
profit margin), with reference to historical sales
information, current business performance and
sales plan.

Comparing the available bank facilities and
arrangements with underlying documentation,
which included bank facility agreements, and
assessing the impact of any covenants and other
restrictive terms attached thereto;

Assessing the Group’s ability to renew or
refinance existing bank facilities upon maturity by
performing a retrospective review of past renewal
or roll-over of banking facilities in prior years;

Assessing the sensitivity of the key assumptions
management used in the going concern
assessment, and consider whether management is
biased when choosing such assumptions.

Assessing the accuracy and reliability of the
forecast by comparing the previous years’
cash flow forecasts with the accrual operating
performance.

We noted that the judgement made by management
for going concern assessment, and the key assumptions
and estimates used in the forecast were supported by
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Michael W.H. Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWmE

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2017 2016
201745 20164
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt it FERT FHET
Continuing operations BEKE XK
Revenue A 5 1,453,035 1,358,953
Cost of sales 5 E R A 7 (952,759) (852,858)
Gross profit EF 500,276 506,095
Other income and gains — net A KW — %58 6 133,175 142,647
Selling and marketing costs HE RS #HERA 7 (97.641) (101,484)
Administrative expenses THRAEX 7 (352,114) (411,668)
Operating profit FEE— i 183,696 135,590
Finance income BB WA 9 8,731 19,953
Finance costs A& KA 9 (101,777) (188,572)
Finance costs — net BERA — F5E 9 (93,046) (168,619)
Share of result of associates FE(REEE N R EE 18 129,874 455,513
Share of result of a joint venture Bl —FH& & RAIER 19 (2,518) 1,039
Profit before taxation RR Bt A1 5= F 218,006 423,523
Taxation IR 10 3,845 (9,434)
Profit for the year from BEKSEZEKZ
continuing operations AEERR 221,851 414,089
Discontinued operation DRIERE XK
Profit for the year from BRIEREZEE 2
discontinued operation RFE5m 11 = 647,781
Profit for the year REEBA 221,851 1,061,870
Profit for the year REEEF
attributable to: BERN:
Owners of the Company RAARERFESE 220,097 1,061,166
Non-controlling interests SEVE IR = 1,754 704
221,851 1,061,870
Profit for the year rEERNEE
attributable to owners of RAERAT] R
the Company arises from: BFEERBR:
Continuing operations RHEBELE XK 220,097 412,449
Discontinued operation BRIERE X = 648,717
220,097 1,061,166
Dividend ’RE 12 60,896 60,896
HK cents HK cents
AL 7
Basic earnings per share BRERER 13
Continuing operations RERECER 10.84 20.32
Discontinued operation ERIERE 2 XK - 31.96
10.84 52.28
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Profit for the year REEEA 221,851 1,061,870
Other comprehensive income for the year: ARNEEHM2HKE :
ltems that will not be subsequently TEHEEIEE RN
reclassified to profit or loss: E1EMIEE -
Recognition of gain in fair value of BERMEEREREME
owner-occupied properties upon EEARBERS
transfer to investment properties 17,602 -
Share of an associate’s revaluation JE1E — B E QAR
gains on properties e R 1,107 5,201
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HigAIE E N R E & sk
to profit or loss: EEMWIEE :
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINERH
foreign operations PE W =% 181,597 (77,255)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZ2HKEHAE 422,157 989,816
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZ2HKNEHE
attributable to: FEER:
Owners of the Company ARRERFEEE 418,642 989,918
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR B 3,515 (102)
422,157 989,816
Total comprehensive income for rEEXHEHKEEARE
the year attributable to owners EERANAIER
of the Company arises from: FEERAR:
Continuing operations BEBELCE XK 418,642 349,210
Discontinued operation BRI E X - 640,708
418,642 989,918
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEEEAER
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
2017128318 2016%12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
et TR FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 14 420,352 429,681
Investment properties REME 15 51,202 -
Land use rights T {E 16 12,314 11,944
Intangible assets B EE 17 2,869 5,958
Investment in associates REEE R BIRE 18 2,782,326 2,449,780
Investment in a joint venture R—BEaERARIIKRE 19 4,106 6,406
Deferred tax assets BEEREEE 10 40,980 16,965
Available-for-sale financial assets L EeREE 20 = 7,267
3,314,149 2,928,001
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 21 406,085 257,010
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H fth e L IE 22 767,270 964,736
Available-for-sale financial assets R ESHEE 20 202,485 37,249
Short-term deposits and investments HHERREE 23 11,000 127,601
Cash in transit FeR& = 866,754
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMREEEY 24 373,831 911,917
1,760,671 3,165,267
Total assets BEEHAE 5,074,820 6,093,268
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

= AN
meEEEER
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175128318 2016%12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
et T FET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners EAREBEEEEN
of the Company R
Share capital and premium BRA KRB 25 825,454 825,454
Reserves s (551,812) (768,398)
Retained earnings RE %A 1,751,880 1,610,720
2,025,522 1,667,776
Non-controlling interests IR R 16,388 12,873
Total equity A 2,041,910 1,680,649
Liabilities afs
Non-current liabilities F¥RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIBAE 10 14,126 7,812
Current liabilities nREAE
Deferred government grants EEB T B 26 31,863 34,532
Advances from customers REMEMNRIA 10,462 3,132
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEH MR 27 634,801 792,072
Unsecured corporate bonds BEERCEES 28 = 3,069,502
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 2,314,473 477,621
Income tax payable FEfT T8 508 27,185 27,948
3,018,784 4,404,807
Total liabilities BELHE 3,032,910 4,412,619
Total equity and liabilities EnkBELAHE 5,074,820 6,093,268

The financial statements on pages 85 to 175 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 March 2018 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Dong Haoran E#% R
Director %

HNFESEEFITSA LV EREALEETZT RN
2018F 3 A26B HEREETIEE - WA TH AL

REREE

Liu Hongzhou 4T
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

Attributable to owners of the Company

KhAREREARE
Property Non-
Share Share Surplus  Translation  revaluation Merger Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
e BARE BRER EfRE NEEMER AfRE BhEE REEA B8 FERER EaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
Thn ThL Thn ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note (3))
W) ) ()
At 1 January 2016 01651518 20,299 805,155 19,664 48,999) - (690,510) 189,663 1,140,865 1436,137 114838 1,550,975
Total comprehensive income 2kELE - - - (76,449) 5,201 - - 1,061,166 989,918 (102) 989,816
Capital injecton by non-controlling intrests FEhER e - - - - - - - - - 71,298 71,298
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - - - 80,027 - - - - 80,027 (111,839 (31812)
Transfer upon disposal of subsicres IHERBARE 288 - - - - - 591311 - (591311) - - -
Business combination under common control KREHTHERAH - - - - - (643928) - - (64392) - B
Transactions ith non-controling nterests BEERER RS = = = = = = (133,482) = (133,482) (61322) (194,804)
Payment o didend Rk - - - - - - o - o - (608
At 31 December 2016 H2016512A31R 20,299 805,155 19,664 (45,421) 5201 (73.127) {4s) 1,610,720 1,667,776 12813 1,680,649
At 1 January 2017 H0E1818 20,29 805,155 19,664 (#5,421) 5201 (13.121) (&715) 1,610,720 1,667,776 12813 1,680,649
Total comprefiensive income il - - - 180,603 1794 - - 20097 418,60 3515 min
Appropriaton to srplu reserve ROEHER - - 18,041 - - - - (18,041) - - -
Payment of dividend HfiRe - - - - - - - (60,8%) (60,8%) - (60,8%)
At 31 December 2017 0175128318 20,299 805,155 37,705 135,182 B8 (13.127) (&115) 1,751,880 2,025,522 16,388 2,041,910
(a)  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, a (a) REABERBEAMNRIEN  XAFTRPEZHBRARKN

portion of the profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries has
been transferred to the enterprise expansion fund and reserve

fund (the “surplus reserve”) which are restricted as to use.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Fan Eﬁaﬁ/)lbi%

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2017 2016
20174 20164
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt it FERT FAET
Cash flows from operating RETH2HERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KREELE RS 30 298,903 227,214
Interest paid SAFB (160,126) (172,412)
Income tax paid SENGIEST (13,425) (16,157)
Net cash generated from REEELEZREFHA
operating activities 125,352 38,645
Cash flows from investing REZBHz2EHERE
activities
Interest received U B F & 30,529 74,977
Payment for acquisition of X T — S AR &
an associate and disposal of & B B A Rl 2 KIE
subsidiaries - (1,288,230)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME  BEREE -
equipment, investment properties KREMENBETLE E
and intangible assets (39,707) (72,679)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BE K
plant and equipment REFTERIA 5,974 5,001
Payment for available-for-sale XNAHEESRERE
financial assets 2 FRIB (579,444) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEES/mEE
available-for-sale financial assets Fr 15 78 425,484 105,037
Net decrease in short-term RHERRKRE ZFRD
deposits and investments 121,323 1,719,074
Proceeds from government grants BT 76 BY P A5 008 - 9,680
Dividends received W E AR 2 51,000 76,500
Proceeds from repayment of BEZRENRFAENRIEA
entrusted loans 896,321 320,713
Proceeds from disposal of a business & — I8 ¥ 5 FAE 108,166 -~
Net cash generated from KREEHELEZREFHA
investing activities 1,019,646 950,073
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2017 2016
201745 20164
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt it FERT FHET
Cash flows from financing METBH2RERE
activities
Capital injection by non-controlling  JE#ERR iR 2 )T &
interests - 71,298
Proceeds from bank and RITREMBEEMEKIE
other borrowings 4,307,145 835,603
Repayment of bank and BERRTIAEMES
other borrowings (2,564,428) (880,033)
Dividend paid AT B (60,896) (60,896)
Payment for business combination X HBZEHTHEBSE O
under common control 2 RIE (221,082) (770,557)
Redemption of unsecured corporate  f& Bl &K > ¥ E 5
bonds (3,117,767) -
Net cash used in financing activities BIEEEFTA 2R & F58 (1,657,028) (804,585)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERBALEE/YORD)
and cash equivalents hn 28 (512,030) 184,133
Effect of exchange rate changes EXREH T & (26,056) (49,281)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzBEeRReEEY
beginning of the year 911,917 777,065
Cash and cash equivalents at FR2BEEREAEEEY
end of the year 373,831 911,917
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability.
The Company has its shares listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company’'s registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

On 2 August 2017, the Company changed its English
name from “China Electronics Corporation Holdings
Company Limited” to “China Electronics Huada
Technology Company Limited”, and adopted a new
Chinese name "HEEFEFEARZARAAF" as its
secondary name in Bermuda to replace its existing
Chinese name "HREEFEEIZERERAF]".

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which
is established in the People’'s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are the design
and sale of integrated circuit chips.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollar”), unless otherwise
stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1. —REH

PEEFEARMBEBERAA(TAXARAR] A—
WERBEEAR - ARAIRNEBBHERS
FIERRR LM AAAMFEMHEEMU A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

201768 H28 - AR AR X HAMWAH [ China
Electronics Corporation Holdings Company
Limited | 2t & [ China Electronics Huada
Technology Company Limited | * W& ¥ X%
BIAEEFEANBERAR I AEBRESHD
Z UBRRKEREERXERBITREFEEE
RERAR] -

ARBZBEERRAATHEFEREXREH
BERAR([PEEFEE]D (—HKRPEARK
ME ([HE )KL ZEE) °

fiD B+

KREWERT (GRETARE]) B EBER
BT 2 RETRIHE -

R A)
39

BRAZAN  AEaMBRRABIT (AT
5l o

2. EXRSHEHEBE

RENFEMBERERAEANEESHBERET
W -BRAEEHN HERR-—EEBEAR
FTBEEHZFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties
and certain available-for-sale financial assets which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
had adopted the following amended standards that
are relevant to its operations and effective for the
accounting period beginning on 1 January 2017:

HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative
(amendments)

HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax
(amendments) assets for unrealised losses

The adoption of the above amended standards did
not have significant impact on the results or financial
position of the Group for the current year.

2. EXRSTHEHRBEGE)

2.1 mEEZE
(@) FE BB EIHREERR AR

FEMBHRRDIRBETESAMASRHZHAE
BARNBEWBREEL ((FEMBERELER])
M - ZEFFRAVBERERNETEBHERS
FrBRAREZ EMARR (T ETRAL) FrEl @
ARBERTE - FAVBRREZRELKNAEFE
wE YRBREMERETAHRLESREEN
S (EARER) MELES -

RAENTEBEMBREENNGEA M B RKREARE
AETHRZEHE EEERERASEDN
SRTRRBRER IATEEHE - ARG
BRME P RBEHERERENEER  HF R
EZRBEHBRRRMGE - EM T4 HE -

(b) FralERl - EAIEET R 2 FE

REZE2017F12A31HIEFER  REBBR R
THEHERAREN2017F1B1BHB Z 5t
BRI A B2 B RT 2R

FR G EAFTR FEAT &
(f£%T)

FREGFEAFE125R  HAAREREBRERELT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 8 ZE2017F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

The following new and amended standards that are
relevant to the operation of the Group have been
issued but are not effective for the accounting period
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not been early
adopted:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (effective
from 1 January 2018)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (effective from
1 January 2018)
HKAS 40 Transfers of investment
(amendments) property (effective from
1 January 2018)
HKFRS 16 Leases (effective from

1 January 2019)

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture
(effective date not yet
determined)

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
(amendments)

Management is currently assessing the impact of the
above new and amended standards to the Group’s
financial position and performance.

Material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance on the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
instruments, HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and HKAS 40 (amendments) Transfers
of investment property for the accounting period
beginning on 1 January 2018 is set out below:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

The Group's financial assets that are currently classified
as available-for-sale financial assets will satisfy the
conditions for classification as financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"). Gains or losses realised on disposal of
financial assets measured at FVOCI will no longer be
recognised in profit or loss, but instead reclassified
below the line from the FVOCI reserve to retained
earnings. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
HK$3,565,000 of such gains were recognised in profit
or loss in relation to the disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(c) Going concern

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$1,258,113,000
primarily due to the fact that the Group has liabilities
under short-term bank and other borrowings (the
“Short-term Borrowings”) of HK$2,314.5 million.
The Short-term Borrowings of HK$2,242.6 million are
guaranteed by CEC.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections which covers a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2017. Given that
the Short-term Borrowings of HK$2,242.6 million
are guaranteed by CEC, and taking into account the
financial resources available to the Group, including
the internally generated funds, expected renewal and
extension of borrowings upon their maturities and the
available committed borrowing facilities, the Board
considers that there are sufficient financial resources
available to the Group to meet its financial liabilities as
and when they fall due in the coming twelve months
from 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the Board has
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year will be included in the consolidated financial
statements from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal (except for
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control
which are accounted for using the principles of merger
accounting), as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Apart from the application of merger accounting on
those common control combination as disclosed in Note
2.2(c) below, the acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business combination by the
Group. The consideration transferred for an acquisition
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to
be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in the income statement or as a change
to other comprehensive income in the statement of
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Acquisition-related transaction costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree is less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s
balance sheet (Note 2.9). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company in the
Company's income statement to the extent of dividend
received and receivable.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control by the
Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of
the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under
common control, whichever is shorter and regardless of
the effective date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet
dates or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination (Cont’d)

Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has
been recorded in the merger reserve in consolidated
financial statements.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in an associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 8 ZE2017F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(d) Associates (Cont’d)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of result of associates” in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(e) Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangement and determined it to be a joint venture.
Joint venture is accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, interest
in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of post-acquisition profit or loss and movements in
other comprehensive income. The Group’s investment
in a joint venture includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in a joint venture, any difference between the
cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the joint venture is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of result of a joint venture”
in the income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint venture. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint venture have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board, that makes
strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollar, which
is the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “finance income/(costs) — net”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “other income
and gains — net”.
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2.4

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are
taken to other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings and leasehold  5-20 years

improvements (or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)

24 SEBE(E)
() B RBHEE

HRBIEBNRE (ARERNKBREINER
TR D RERESNRREEFENE
BB AR MESE) R EEHRAFA
BamGEBR AR REREEMENELEZHE
VEDRERAKEE

25 YE- -BERRE

ME - BE RREERE 2R ITE MO EE R
®BIR - BLRABEWBEZRE BEREN 2
¥ o

BEZERBEZAARBEREARZRRE
BEMEAGREATRERARNEEYL B LA S
AER TEABRERAEXER S BB
BERIBRME) - A HEMGERREKE
EEEAZMBHEARGE HERTH -

WE BELRREBZNEDNEREFTE  ZHE
At ERFH O BA - ARG AT EAFH
(NN

- BFREEWEREE 52205 HBEHNFH

(A& B%E)
- BB ka3 5& 104
- EH 5E 104
- BEMKEEE 54

104 china Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
(Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised within
“other income and gains — net” in the consolidated
income statement.

Construction in progress represents the direct
costs of construction incurred in property less any
impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time that
the relevant assets are completed and available for
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

2.6 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that
are being constructed or developed for future use
as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is
met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

2. EXRSTHEHRBEGE)

25 WME- -BERRKE(E)

BENNSEERAIERFHESEEERET
kAR (WmER) -

FEEMREESNEMGTREEE  HE@
18 BB 0Bk = m] Uk (@ (B HE (A 62£2.9)

HEXRENRBIRAMSHIALRBBEERTE
MEBRET TESARERANEMKAR
W FaR | PR o

ERTRERRYE ZEERAREEARER
BEIK - ERTRERABEETHREAIHER
AT RTERE SEERETENKR T ZS
AEARER  EETREERESREEE B
Y% - BB LERET -

26 BEYWHE

REWH TE2EHESIHNEFEKR  HEAR
EGRPHES KRS RERERIBEKME RER
B IFHAREER - HNBERERLERT A
RAREREVEREZNDE - MTAREME
MAEE  KEHETHIHERKREDEA
FR-AEHBERAT  AENKEHERIREHE
N

HEEFEARNKERAT 2017FF3:% 105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.6 Investment properties (Cont’d)

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property or for which
the market has become less active continues to be
measured at fair value. Changes in fair values are
recognised within “other income and gains — net” in
the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’'s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is
under construction or development for future use
as investment property is classified as investment
property under construction. Where fair value of
investment properties under construction is not reliably
measurable, the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or the date
at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.6 Investment properties (Cont’d)

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised as a revaluation. The resulting
increase in the carrying amount is recognised in other
comprehensive income and increases revaluation
reserve within equity. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and the remaining part of the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and increases
revaluation surplus within equity. For a transfer from
completed properties held for sale or properties under
development to investment properties that will be
carried at fair value, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.

2.7 Land use rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating
leases of land use rights. For the land use rights held
for self-use, the upfront payments are recorded as a
separate asset and are amortised to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over their
lease periods. For the land use rights held for sale, the
upfront payments are recorded as land use rights held
for sale. Land use rights held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

2.8 Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of one to three years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each balance
sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.10 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographic area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10 Discontinued operations (Cont’d)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented in the consolidated income
statement, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss
of the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain
or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

2.11 Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into two
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 1 year
after the balance sheet date, which are classified as
non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables” (Note
2.13), “cash and cash equivalents” (Note 2.14) and
“short-term deposits and investments” in the balance
sheet.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in the other category.
They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose
of the investment within 1 year of the balance sheet
date, which are classified as current assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets. However, for
available-for-sale financial assets that do not have
a quoted market price, the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant and the possibilities of
the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed, is
stated at cost. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
until the financial asset is disposed of or determined to
be impaired. Dividend income from available-for-sale
financial assets is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other income and gains
— net” when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of “other income and gains — net”.

When available-for-sale securities are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.11.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. All
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. In the case of available-for-sale
financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below its cost is considered as an
indicator that the financial asset is impaired. If any such
evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in income statement and
in equity, is recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised on available-for-sale
equity instruments are not subsequently reversed.
Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in Note 2.13.

2.12 Inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted-average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour,
manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in 1 year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets. Trade and other receivables
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulty of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the
receivable’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the provision is recognised
in the income statement within “administrative
expenses”. When the receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for
receivables. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or
less.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
cost directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
share options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the
government grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grant
relating to an asset is included in non-current liabilities,
which is credited to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life
of the related asset. Government grant relating to an
expense item is deferred and recognised as income in
the consolidated income statement over the period
necessary to match with the cost that it is intended to
compensate.

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within 1 year or
less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 1 year after the balance sheet
date.

2. EXRSTHEHRBEGE)

2.15 KR

TEREEAER EBETHRIBREEES
F%ZiEEEJZZlK VA B 58 55 58 b 080 B 1T Uk A 1B A A
AR o

2.16 BUFH#BY

= RES A HE b IR 78 BR T 8 B A% R UER - T AN SR
HETAMANG RS - RIRFHEBREAR
EERAR - BEERBBRAHBIA RS
BE YEAMEEZ G AIEAFHUNERZE
ERAWERT 0 # - BAXIAR AR B
BNEEARR - Wi R R < fH & IERER
ERB M ABELENHBEGS RERTPERR
WA e

217 EZEFRRE

BHRNFAREAEEKBIETUBEHERD
hﬁﬁ’]?ﬁuu‘kﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘iﬁﬁ’]f& e 5 EN
RENZNABME—FHUR - ERDBE/R
ﬁ% CBASBERIFRBDAG - BHEMNFIAL
VIR AR EHER - HE&RABRNBIAIRE HK AR

u-l—i >

2.18 f£&

EERVRAABYHREEN R FERATER
fEERRIZEERATER ISR (RS
P BB EE A E R ZBIABR N EOENE
EHEAERERTER

F%#ﬁ’ilﬁﬂﬂ HRMNBAENEERETEER
BRExI—F BAEEIEARDE

FEREETEANLARAA 20175FH® 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 8 ZE2017F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred taxation differences
(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred taxation is not recognised for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred taxation
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(b) Deferred taxation differences (Cont’d)
(i) Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow of resources with
respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
— administered funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to
make contribution to staff retirement scheme managed
by local government authorities in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the income statement as and
when incurred. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.21 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(b) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

2.22 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision
but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
resources occurs so that the outflow is probable, they
will then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts.
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to
customers, the customers have accepted the goods or
the product quality inspection time period has lapsed
and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
the risks and rewards of properties are transferred
to the purchasers, which is when the construction
of relevant properties has been completed and the
properties have been delivered to the purchasers and
collectibility of related receivables is reasonably assured.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included
in the consolidated balance sheet as advances from
customers under current liabilities.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.25 Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.26 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and
testing of identifiable and unique software products
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

—  there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

— it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development of the software
product are available; and

—  the expenditure attributable to the software
product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product cost includes employee costs for
software development and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.26 Research and development costs
(Cont’d)

Other development costs that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed
three years.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred
due to the fact that the Group had some business
activities denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group’s business activities are primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk in respect of HK dollar against
Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. In additions, the
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If HK dollar had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would have been HK$3,818,000 lower/higher
(2016: HK$2,423,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains or losses on translation of
HK dollar denominated cash and cash equivalents, and
bank and other borrowings.

As less than 10% of the Group's foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign
currencies, the Board is of the view that foreign
exchange risk in relation to transactions denominated
in other foreign currencies is low. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis for these currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing
assets such as deposits held in banks and other
financial institutions and short-term investments. The
average interest rate on deposits held in banks and
other financial institutions at 31 December 2017 was
approximately 2.09% (2016: 2.53%) per annum. The
average interest rate on short-term investments at 31
December 2017 was approximately 3.75% per annum.
Any change in the interest rate from time to time is not
considered to have significant impact to the Group's
performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Cont’d)

In addition, the Group’s interest rate risk which affects
its results and operating cash flows also arises from
interest-bearing liabilities such as bank and other
borrowings and unsecured corporate bonds. The bank
and other borrowings were at fixed and variable rates
and the unsecured corporate bonds were at fixed rate
and exposed the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings at fixed rate and variable rate were as
follows:
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HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHE T

Borrowings at fixed rate ERBMEE 2,214,473 357,309
Borrowings at variable rate FENFI B G 100,000 120,312
2,314,473 477,621

If the interest rate on variable rate borrowings had
been higher/lower by 50 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
HK$301,000 lower/higher (2016: HK$502,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expenses on variable rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(c) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
short-term deposits and investments and trade and
other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the balance sheet date is their carrying value. The
Group has policies and procedures in place to ensure
they are made to counterparties with acceptable credit
quality.

All the Group’s deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term investments are placed or
invested in high quality financial institutions without
significant exposure to credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the credit quality of
the counterparties is assessed by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors.
Individual credit limits are set based on the assessment
of the credit quality. Given the constant repayment
history, the Board is of the opinion that the risk of
default by these counterparties is not significant.
Further disclosure on credit risk are set out in Note 22.

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including
maintaining sufficient working capital, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
borrowing facilities and the ability to close out market
positions is adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by ensuring sufficient committed borrowing
facilities are available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities
by maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are based on the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities. The Group’s consideration of going concern
is set out in Note 2.1(c).

3. UXREREEGE)

3.1 HBEBREERE)
@  EBELEE ()

TREJAEBKEE 2 SBAE - L TIRIRA
BEIMER  REHEERES QR HAE ZRER
HRETHON - RETRBEZEHMARSB IR
BEHNZANMRRSREE - AEEBANFE
REMZBFIBHNMIEE2.1(c)

31 December 2017
2017%12H31A8
More than

1 year but less
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Within 1 year —EpE Total

—ER BRBBME &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 2,320,234 - 2,320,234
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNKIEB
(excluding salary and welfare (T B R F B &

payables and other taxes payables) ~ E A ERFiIE) 567,962 - 567,962

2,888,196 - 2,888,196
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZE2017F 12318 Lt FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

3. U¥REREE(GE)
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201612 A318
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than 2 years

Within 1 year —FE Total

—FR BT BB M F At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET FAEL

Unsecured corporate bonds BEERALEES 3,146,555 = 3,146,555

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 488,573 = 488,573
Trade and other payables B 5 RE R RIE
(excluding salary and welfare (T fERENFH M X

payables and other taxes payables)  E A ERFiIE) 723,356 - 723,356

4,358,484 - 4,358,484

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings and
unsecured corporate bonds, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, which comprises issued equity
and reserves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont’d)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
equity, as shown in the consolidated balance sheets,
plus net debt.

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 and
2016 is as follows:
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ERBERRE LR EEBYAE - ERNERIZER
BREERBERMIIRZ EENERFRETE -

M2017F N2016E12A310  AEB 2B KA
BEERMT ¢

2017 2016

20175 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FATT

Bank and other borrowings (Note 29) SRITREMEE (H:#29) 2,314,473 477,621

Unsecured corporate bonds (Note 28) EIRH O EBH (W i+28) = 3,069,502
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) & - RE&EMBEEHEY

(B zt24) (373,831) (911,917)

Net debt B F5E 1,940,642 2,635,206

Total equity B 2,041,910 1,680,649

Total capital BRMREE 3,982,552 4,315,855

Gearing ratio BEAREELX 48.73% 61.06%

In the opinion of the Board, the Group’s capital risk is
not significant.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable, as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

EXERRASEEH 2 ERARARIERX

3.3 AREME
UARESEr R TAREAERAAERE

DB/ TI—E=M:

s FE—RAAEFENBHEREEXBENE
BMiZTH 2 HECRERAE) G -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Movements in the financial assets that are measured at
fair value during the year are as follows:

Available-for-sale
financial assets AHHESREE

- Wealth management products - EEEER

3.

3.3

BEERER (&)

D REME ()

E_MAREFEDNRE -RMBRZKRE
S BEERRBEANER (AER) KB
(BERTLE)BREZEERH -

RAREAETAEREERABE LI
—J&Em?ﬁ%%(ﬁ (HABR 28R BEE

5

AREFNARABEFEZEREEZEHNT ¢

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

% o/ E=® &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET THET THL

At 1 January 2016 M2016F1A1A8 - - 147,237 147,237
Exchange differences [ =58 = = (4,951) (4,951)
Disposals & - - (105,037)  (105,037)
At 31 December 2016 120165128318 - - 37,249 37,249
At 1 January 2017 ®20175181A8 - - 37,249 37,249
Exchange differences N ERE - - 7,711 7,711
Additions En - - 579,444 579,444
Disposals & - - (421,919)  (421,919)
At 31 December 2017 ®2017512831H - - 202,485 202,485

See Note 15 for disclosures of the investment
properties that are measured at fair value.

FRMEISURAABAEZREYEZRE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different
jurisdictions. Estimation and judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income
tax. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred taxation
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

In accordance with the corporate income tax laws in
the PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
dividend declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors starting from 1 January
2008. During the year, the Board reassessed the
dividend policy of its major subsidiary established in the
PRC, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada
Electronics”) based on the Group's current business
plan and financial position, certain retained earnings
generated by Huada Electronics would be distributed to
its non-PRC registered intermediate holding company
and as such, deferred tax liabilities in this respect was
provided in the year to the extent that such earnings
are estimated by the Board to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of HK$646,111,000 (2016:
HK$492,885,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be remitted out of
the PRC in the foreseeable future.

4. FEGEHETTRAE

41 FEBRIELERIE

AEEARTRBDEERBMAEH - REEM
SUERBzeRE  FEDGE RAE -RA
BEEBERPHFERS MFEHHABEERR
IBHBEE - HxFEFRIZERBERERIRN
AR REEENBERHEH M
BHMECHEARBELTE -

RBEFBEMERMAENE - B2008F1A1BE - &
R BRCSZEY R Bl A HEBIMEE E D IRA AR
WI0%W BB - RAFR  EFFERNK
SEREEEE S MM BARREFBREL LR
BezI2MBAREAREFNREEE LR+
BERETRAAREETRATEREFDH
= TREEME DK T AR BRI P EERA
Al e Bt UEFMAF R A E R K KD KA
MAER RAFERARETRBREELDR
e

AEBUEREHATFRMBARREETER
AR AR DR L RIE NS 5 A646,111,000
77T (20164F : 492,885,000/ 7T) B9 i Fl B 5 4E
EFIEAE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.2 Impairment of trade and other
receivables

Management reviews its trade and other receivables for
objective evidence of impairment. Significant financial
difficulty of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered
as objective evidence that a receivable is impaired. In
determining this, management makes judgments as to
whether there is observable data indicating that there
has been a significant change in the payment ability
of the debtor, or whether there have been significant
changes with adverse effect on the market and
economic environment in which the debtor operates.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment,
management makes judgments as to whether an
impairment loss should be recognised as an expense.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
of the Group at 31 December 2017 is HK$48,425,000
(2016: HK$32,452,000).

4.3 Fair value of investment properties

During the year, the Board assessed the principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation
of fair value of investment properties of the Group.
The fair value of investment properties are assessed
annually by an independent professional valuer. The
valuation is principally based on income approach by
taking into account the terms of any existing leases and
other external evidence such as current market rents or
sales for similar types of properties in the locality, and
using capitalisation rates that reflect current market
expectation for the assets being valued. The valuation
techniques and significant assumptions of investment
properties are disclosed in Note 15.

4. FEEHETIRHE(F)

42 EBESZRHMERRERE

EEERNEBS NEAMBRKFAR LS ETER
BEERE BEBALREAMBEE BB ARG
WESETHBESR  ARBRIGBHAR - 5
HERERRYFAEEZERERE EBTERE
B EEEFHEACABRBBRTETAN
BRENBERES HACHEBGARBHE
S MEBERREBR AN ENERES - 11
BERERERE  EEEHEA DREREERE

KEBR2017F12A31BE 5 Kk H b fE UL
FIE R B B A48,425,000%8 5T (20164 -
32,452,000 70)

43 REVEARE

FR EFSHAEEBEHAKRBRENELAAR
BEAZIERR REVEZQAAEESFAMH
B EXMBEMELFE ZEEZEERNKE
& FEAEMBRARD 2 R EEMIMER R (18
REEERRREYME 2 REH S HESNIHEE
R)WERRREMEEZEE 2RETIHES
ZERELRFE - REVR2EETEAREKR
R AP 5T 159 B 5R -
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

5. WA K2 E8E %

INFORMATION
(a) Revenue (@) WA
Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A318LLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Continuing operations BERKE XK
Sale of integrated circuit products HEEKEIKE M 1,453,035 1,358,953
Discontinued operation ERIERE ZERK
Rental income from investment properties &R EWEHNHEE U A - 19,008
1,453,035 1,377,961

(b) Operating segments

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board (the chief
operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Board assesses
the performance of operating segment based on a
measure of its operating profit excluding unallocated
corporate income and expenses.

In prior years, the Group was engaged in the following
two operating segments:

- Design and sale of integrated circuit chips; and

- Development and management of electronic
information technology industrial parks.

As disclosed in Note 11, the development and
management of electronic information technology
industrial parks operating segment was disposed of
on 30 June 2016 and was classified as discontinued
operation of the Group accordingly.

The Board considers that the Group’s continuing
operations are operated and managed as a single
segment, accordingly no segment information is
presented for the continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

(b) EEZIR

EEECRBEEFS (ZBLERKRE) CEHNE
AERBARDEERANSRE  BELEDE
EEERBEEENH 2L RGN (TEERDE
B R R A KBS AR E R -

FEAREE - NEBZEN N IEZED S

- SRERTH ZRFAREE R

— EFEERRMEXECERIER -

AT RE  ETFEERMEXR 2%
E&EfiaLﬁa‘BEE/\ZO16¢6H3OE%ﬁ
I ZEES B EAAEEEREEE 2%
ir%o

BEEERRAEE I HBERLEZEBAE—SH
HEREE WU EBEEEZE2017F12A318 1k
FRFBEEZEB DA ER -
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WARDEBER ()

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(b) Operating segments (Cont’d)

The segment revenue and results for the year ended 31

5.

(b)
HZE2016F12A31HIEFE & DI A K 2

EEIW(E)

December 2016 are as follow: BEYNT :
Discontinued
operation —
Development
and
Continuing  management
operations - of electronic
Design information
and sale of technology
integrated industrial
circuit chips parks
BELE BRIERE
LR ZEB—
ENER BTEEHRI
aprac EFXEZ Total
RiEE BERER Aat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THAT
Segment revenue AEBA
Sale of integrated circuit products HEEKEREM 1,358,953 - 1,358,953
Rental income from investment properties REMENHESWA = 19,008 19,008
1,358,953 19,008 1,377,961
Share of result of a joint venture EE—RaERr%E 1,039 - 1,039
Fair value gains on investment properties BREMENR A BRE = 45,395 45,395
(Impairment provision)/reversal of impairment WA (EE) /#E
provision (47,350) 312 (47,038)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses MEREHER (52,806) = (52,806)
Gain on disposal of the discontinued HEDRELE 2 EB 2 WA
operation - 620,794 620,794
Segment results DEERE 125,074 655,784 780,858
Share of result of an associate EE—HBERNAEE 455,513
Unallocated corporate interest income AOEHRAFEWA 76,598
Unallocated corporate expenses AABRHAARAZ (41,507)
Finance costs - net BEKA - F8 (170,326)
Profit before taxation B % Al A 1,101,136
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(b) Operating segments (Cont’d)

Unallocated corporate income and expenses are
common income and expenses generated from the
operating segments as a whole and therefore they
are not included in the measure of the segments’
performance.

Revenues of HK$367,263,000 and HK$166,871,000
(2016: HK$296,322,000 and HK$164,778,000),
respectively, are derived from 2 (2016: 2) external
customers of the Group. These revenues are
attributable to the operating segment of design and
sale of integrated circuit chips. Save as disclosed herein,
no revenue derived from a single external customer
have exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group.

Nearly 100% of the Group’s revenue is attributable
to the market in the PRC and over 90% of the
Group’s non-current assets are located in the PRC. No
geographical information is therefore presented.

5. WARSBER(E)

(b) ENE(E)

APENRRRANFAXSEENHEBRLES
B HBBRARFAS  BMARBAD B RROFTE
B e

/5 27367,263,0007% 7T 52.166,871,000/% 7T (2016
E : 296,322,000 JT 2 164,778,000/ 7T) 2 W
DRIKREAREB ZME (2016%F : B ) INRR
)5 ZERAFBRENER O 2R REE
ZELﬁaB BRANFTIEZEEN  WEAEMKRE
—IINAREEZRABBEAEBRRAZ10% °

ERANEBET100% 2 WARBERFETEE
HBi890% 2 M EEMMN T E - NI E W FE
& B
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS — NET 6. HWARWKzE—F&E
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B831HILEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Continuing operations BERE ¥R
Government grants IS #8 BY 20,711 95,048
Gain on disposal of a business (Note(a)) W& —IBEB W (M ita) 102,510 -
Exchange gains/(losses) e, (B518) 3,356 (4,937)
Interest income on short-term deposits RETFERRREFR S A
and investments 720 2,059
Interest income on entrusted loans ZXERFBWA - 48,502
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESREERS
financial assets 3,565 2,501
Rental income el A 1,217 -
Others HAfth 1,096 (526)
133,175 142,647
Discontinued operation ERIERE ZEK
Government grants BT #8 B - 2,371
Fair value gains on investment properties & EWEH AR EREG - 45,395
Interest income on entrusted loans EAERFBWA - 23,249
Interest income on available-for-sale At ESREERNBWA
financial assets - 287
Others EH i - (29)
- 71,273
(a) On 3 March 2017, Huada Electronics entered (a) M20179F3A3H » #EXE F 5] %N

into an agreement to dispose of its navigation
chips business for a cash consideration of
RMB100,000,000 to Shenzhen Huada Beidou
Technology Company Limited (the “Business
Transfer”). The Business Transfer was

completed in May 2017. The Group recognised
a gain before taxation of HK$102,510,000.

102,510,000/ 7T °

4 B AR 100,000,000t & A&
MR EB T RINZERIEIBEEBRA

Al (TXRBEE] - FHERER2017F
5H 5K o AN & B R — TE R B AT W&
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7. RUEEESZER

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and

SIFESHE A « SHE RIS BRAMITERFAX

marketing costs and administrative expenses are ZERWOT
analysed as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operations BFREREZEY
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ~ #T& Kk # iH & A
(Notes 14, 16 and 17) (Htat14 - 16517) 44,824 52,806
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EE®MEZ (A1:£8) 178,664 261,315
Changes in inventories of finished goods EHXm&kEHMFEZH)
and work in progress 149,075 39,355
Raw materials and consumables used Fir BB IR M B XOH # G 797,480 783,275
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 R H e W RIE 2
other receivables (Note 22) WER (M 722) 19,258 16,947
Provision for inventories (Note 21) GFEZBEHZE21) 12,056 30,403
Operating lease expenses on properties MEZKERERS 17,111 20,136
Auditor’s remuneration % SRR B & 2,621 3,712
Discontinued operation BRIERE XK
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) BRERBMNAX (H:E8) - 14,140
Reversal of provision for impairment B 5 I H A & WK IE 2 R E
of trade and other receivables & [0 8 - (312)
Operating lease expenses on properties MEZIKEHRERS - 175

Research and development costs for the continuing
operations for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
HK$224,869,000 (2016: HK$276,801,000) and mainly
comprised of employee costs of HK$122,815,000
(2016: HK$158,638,000) and material costs of
HK$34,593,000 (2016: HK$44,683,000). No research
and development costs were capitalised during the year

ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. [EEREFMMEX
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAT
Continuing operations BERE ¥R
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #r& - EE R EYWEF 151,785 227,972
Contributions to retirement schemes BRIRFTEI R (AT £ ) K (b))
(Notes (a) and (b)) 26,879 33,343
178,664 261,315
Discontinued operation ERIERE XL
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  # & - EEE R EYEF - 13,078
Contributions to retirement schemes BRIRET B (AT D))
(Note (b)) - 1,062
- 14,140
(@) The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the (a) AEEREBACEREERYBESRE
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group's 2 - NEEHRBE B 2 HRPE AR
contributions to MPF Scheme are expensed as SIVER S o
incurred.
(b)  The Company’s PRC subsidiaries participate in (b) ARAREHEZHWERTREFREEG K

defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible
for the pension liabilities to these retired
employees in the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries
made contributions to retirement schemes in
the PRC and are expensed as incurred.

B2 EERHFTRKNGTE - FEIB M
TRRHER EZEFHERKESR ZRIK
S EE - ZET BB QLR BIE
BRI R E ARSI R -
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EEEFAEX(E)
(Cont’d)

()  Five highest paid individuals () ILZEBEBRSHFHMAL

The emoluments payable to the five highest paid FAENTAEERLEZZRTMA LT ZMME0T

individuals of the Group during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE

2017 2016

201745 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FATT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #r& - EEE R EWEF 4,925 4,530
Bonuses TE4L 4,166 7,485
Contributions to retirement schemes RORET IR 418 499
9,509 12,514

hEaEeFTFMALTEIE—R(2016F : —HK)ES
MmEEzME N FIATEER :

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one director (2016: one) and their
emoluments were within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T —1,500,000/%8 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JT — 2,000,000/ JT 4 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/% 7T —2,500,000/% 7T 1 -

HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001% 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T =

5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FA - AEEVEMALRSHMA T EM

Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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9. FINANCE COSTS — NET 9. ®MENK-—FHE
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAT
Continuing operations BERE ¥R
Finance costs: BB KA -
— Interest expense on borrowings —BEMNEXZH 101,777 188,572
Finance income: BE WA
— Interest income on cash and cash -ReMREEEY
equivalents B U A (8,731) (19,953)
Finance costs — net BhE KA — R 8 93,046 168,619
Discontinued operation BRIERE XK
Finance costs: BB KA
— Interest expense on borrowings —fEEMEXH - 3,703
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties B ERMENERNMELEE
under development (Note (a)) (K15t (@) - (1,496)
- 2,207
Finance income: BB WA -
— Interest income on cash and cash -ReERIBEEEY
equivalents F B U A - (500)
Finance costs — net REERA—F58 - 1,707

(a) The capitalisation rate applied to funds (a)

borrowed generally and used for the qualifying
assets was 5.25% for the year ended 31
December 2016.

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE  —RBREA
MARGEREENESMBERZENL
th &R A5.25% o
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10. TAXATION 10. BB
Year ended 31 December
HEZ12A31BLLEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Continuing operations BERE XK
Current taxation AREZFIE
- PRC corporate income tax —HE TSN 13,379 546
— Withholding tax on distributed profits — 2o EE N2 BHAEHR
(Note (c)) (Kt it(c)) 1,734 -
15,113 546
Deferred taxation IR E T IR
— PRC corporate income tax —FRHREMRER (22,057) 5,474
- Withholding tax on undistributed profits — &% A& A 2 I AT 15 ¢
(Note (c)) (Htit(c)) 3,099 3,414
(18,958) 8,888
(3,845) 9,434
Discontinued operation BRIERE XK
Current taxation KEFEHIE
— PRC corporate income tax — RGN - 201
— Withholding tax on disposal of the —HEBRIEKEZEB 2
discontinued operation TBHIFTISRL - 14,385
- 14,586
Deferred taxation EIEF IR
— PRC corporate income tax —HEPEMESH - 15,246
- 29,832
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TAXATION (Cont’d)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had
been made as the Group did not generate any
assessable profit in Hong Kong during the year
(2016: nil).

In accordance with the corporate income
tax laws of the PRC, the applicable
statutory tax rate of Huada Electronics and
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co.,
Ltd (“Huahong"”) is 25%. However, Huada
Electronics qualified as an “Integrated Circuit
Design Enterprises in National Planning Layout”
("ICDE") and Huahong qualified as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE") and thus
enjoyed a 10% and a 15% preferential tax rate,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December
2017. Based on management’s self-assessment
and their track record of success in obtaining
such qualifications, it is highly likely that Huada
Electronics and Huahong will continue to
qualify as an ICDE and a HNTE, respectively,
after the year ended 31 December 2017.

According to the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when
a foreign investment enterprise distributed
dividends out of the profits earned from 1
January 2008 onwards to its overseas investors,
such dividends are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10%.

10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

B (&

BHRAEERAFEARE L BELE
A ERBUAN - A BRE BN S HEL
B (20164F - M) -

BIBEFBEPEMEBRENRE EXETF
EBETENEREREET AR ([
i) ZEREERER25% © Am - HE
2017 12A31BLFE EFEXETFER
[BERBEHBANERERRTEE|ER
NEMES SRR | &R - EitE
BFRETHRNZER10%K15% 2 BH
HE - HNEREMN B RFTHARBEK
NEHBEZEER  EAREFRELGREA
BEREE2017F12A3BIEFE 284
BEORESRRMBEMBANENEKKS
PHEERESHEMEEER -

BIEPBRCEMESRENBBERTE - A&
BRZINEIRE D E AR S mEEINREE
ED B E2008F1 A1 HEELNEF
ZEREBHMI0%MTEHFTER -
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10. TAXATION (Cont‘d) 10.

(d)  Reconciliation between the taxation expense (d)
on the Group’s profit before taxation and the

BiIR (&

AREBBRBAGENZ HBRXRZE 8 E
RZEERERMETE B m IR 2 H iR

theoretical taxation that would arise using the N

respective applicable statutory tax rates are as

follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LLEE

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET

Continuing operations BEREZEK
Profit before taxation B A AT 4 A 218,006 423,523
Calculated at respective applicable EEREREAEREFE

statutory tax rates Z TR 53,918 79,742
Effect of tax concession MBERE 22 (5,834) (5,499)
Research and development costs i 75 K B 38 B AR BR SN BR

additional deductions (20,793) (26,320)
Income not subject to tax TAF U A (21,912) (75,331)
Expenses not deductible for taxation R0 5

purposes 1,337 6,016
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MEGBERELENIB L E

taxation - 8,147
Temporary differences for which no WHERERRCHIBEEE 2

deferred tax asset was recognised T ER - 5,865
Recognition of deferred tax assets for AR FEHIBREE

previous year's tax losses HWRIEERIEE E (10,698) -
Utilisation of previously temporary BAAE Y EERELEHIE

differences for which no deferred tax BECERZEZR

asset was recognised (30,817) (14,905)
Withholding tax on distributed profits EniaNEARER

and current year's undistributed profits Ao B N 2 TIPS 6,567 3,414
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WERERRCHIBEEE 2

asset was recognised HIE 18 24,387 36,576
Over-provision in prior years LRI FEE 2 BERR - (8,271)
Taxation expense HIBRAX (3,845) 9,434
Discontinued operation ERIERE ZEK
Profit before taxation B %% B S A - 677,613
Calculated at respective applicable REBBERAEEREFE

statutory tax rates I8 - 169,403
Income not subject to tax /AR A - (154,377)
Withholding tax on disposal of the HEBRIEKEZEBZ

discontinued operation TS - 14,385
Expenses not deductible for taxation A B A X

purposes — 421
Taxation expense FIE R X - 29,832
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

10. TAXATION (Cont’d) 10. BIE (&
(e) Deferred taxation (e) EZEHIE
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
2017128318 20165%F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHAT
Deferred tax assets REFIEE E 40,980 16,965
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE (14,126) (7,812)
26,854 9,153

The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities

i A R K IH R AR R B ISR 2 pR AR - FARAE

during the year without taking into consideration the MEEERABBEZEHNOT
offsetting of balances with the same taxation authority
are as follows:
Impairment  Salary and Deferred
of welfare  government
inventories payables grants Others Total
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE FERE EAEHM BERFAREE At &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TATL TARL TATL
At 1 January 2016 #20165181A 1,102 4,005 8,102 11,754 24,963
Exchange differences EREE (30) (209) (232) (834) (1,305)
(Charged)/credited to the income statement ~ (;tA) /B g MER (68) (1,080) (6,745) 1,200 (6,693)
At 31 December 2016 ®2016%12531A 1,004 2,716 1,125 12,120 16,965
At 1 January 2017 ®2017%181A 1,004 2,716 1,125 12,120 16,965
Exchange differences ERER 158 201 186 1,413 1,958
Credited to the income statement BelRE 2,496 289 3,068 16,204 22,057
At 31 December 2017 ®2017%12A318 3,658 3,206 4,379 29,737 40,980
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE
10. BIE(E

10. TAXATION (Cont‘d)

(e) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

(e) EEHIE(E)

Withholding
tax on
undistributed
Fair value profits
gains RAFERZ Others Total
Deferred tax liabilities EEHELE ArERE  BENAEH Hith L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THL THL
At 1 January 2016 RH2016F181H = 4,398 1,288 5,686
Exchange differences BN =R - = (69) (69)
Charged/(credited) to the income A (Be)WER
statement - 3,414 (1,219) 2,195
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12831H - 7,812 - 7,812
At 1 January 2017 RH2017F1818 - 7,812 - 7,812
Exchange differences EHESR 108 1 - 109
Charged to the income statement FAKEE — 4,833 = 4,833
Reclassification to current income ENEREHREN
tax payable FETRIE = (1,734) = (1,734)
Recognition of gain in fair value of BERNEBRRENE
owner-occupied properties upon EERAENE
transfer to investment properties 3,106 - - 3,106
At 31 December 2017 RW2017%128318 3,214 10,912 - 14,126
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

10. TAXATION (Cont’d)
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet
include the following:

10. BE (&
(e) EEHHE(EZ)

REREERBERIITZEEERENTER :

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20175%12831H 201612 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
— To be recovered after more than — #1218 A & W E
12 months 18,720 1,588
— To be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Uk 22,260 15,377
40,980 16,965
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE
— To be settled after more than — #1218 A& ER
12 months 3,214 =
— To be settled within 12 months — #1218 A RER 10,912 7,812
14,126 7,812

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carrying-forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. At 31 December 2017, the Group
did not recognise deferred tax assets of HK$78,160,000
(2016: HK$64,473,000) in respect of losses amounting
to HK$428,464,000 (2016: HK$332,106,000) that can
be carried forward against future taxable income. Tax
losses of HK$340,664,000 (2016: HK$218,306,000)
has no expiry date and tax losses of HK$87,800,000
(2016: HK$113,800,000) will expire within 5 years.

BEERMIBEEDNRGEE 2 HIBBEME®ER -
VAT 7] B2 38 K 2R 2 FE o B 6 A1 2 3R B A B 18 A
AR - RN2017F12A318 » KEB I K5t 7]
#2588 DU 38 R 2R B SR B 0% M) 2 5 18428,464,000
7 7T (20164F : 332,106,000/ 7T ) HE R 4E 1 7
IH & E78,160,0007% 7T (20164 : 64,473,000/
JC) ° 340,664,000 ;T 2 L IHE 18 (20164 :
218,306,000/% 7T ) It #% & jm B £ - M™87,800,000
B2 BIEE R (20164 : 113,800,000/ 7T) #
RSFEAJE M ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 8 ZE2017F 128318 L FE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In December 2015, the Group entered into agreements
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in China
Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd (“CEC
Technology”) to China Electronics Optics Valley
Union Holding Company Limited (“CEOVU") for a
consideration of 1,058,530,083 new ordinary shares
of CEOVU and subscribe 1,491,469,917 new ordinary
shares of CEOVU for HK$1,193,175,934 in cash (the
“Transaction”). The Transaction was completed on 30
June 2016 and the operation of CEC Technology and
its subsidiaries was classified as discontinued operation
of the Group accordingly.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the profit of the
discontinued operation was HK$647,781,000.

11. BRIERE X

R2015F 128 AEBEF W= USHE
10585300831&%}%43 fﬁ’éﬂﬁ ZRRAE R QA
(Mﬂsafz%ﬂ) BRHEFEETFRBEFAERR
AR ([RERF]) Z100%0%# F B A KA
|41, 193 175,934 T R 881,491,469,9170% ¥
FEAAEBR((RHFHE]) - XRFHBHER
zo16¢6ﬂ3oamﬁﬁz it PEREREKB
REIZEBHE D BERADRIEEE ZEK -

REZE2016F12A31BILFE » ERIEKEZE
2 3% 7 £647,781,000% 7T

12. DIVIDEND 12. RE
Year ended 31 December

BZ12B831HILEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Proposed dividend BEiRE 60,896 60,896
The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of EEeEBBEAE2017F12A318 LFEIRR

HK3.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: HK3.0 cents per share). The proposed
dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The proposed dividend of HK$60,896,000
(2016: HK$60,896,000), calculated based on the
Company’s number of shares issued at the date of this
annual report, is not recognised as a liability in these
consolidated financial statements.

tﬂx3 0,%1m (2016%F : FAX3.0/8ML) B 8 -

BREBFAAFABRREAEEREBEFT A it
/Efé FAEE - REARRIRAFRAEBHE %
TR & B s E M % A% B 485860,896,00078 7T
(2016%F : 60,896,000/8 7T ) W ERER A B ISR KR
Wﬁﬁuu I/E\E{ﬁ <
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BKRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based EREXRZNTIRE T E&EBEFE -
on the following data:
Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A318LLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
Continuing operations BERE XK
Profit for the year from continuing RACIERFFRERG
operations attributable to owners of the  FELEZEB 2 ARFE
Company (HK$'000) w A (FBTT) 220,097 412,449
Weighted average number of ordinary AUGESRERRRNZ
shares for the purposes of basic T m AR i T8 E
earnings per share 2,029,872,000 2,029,872,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRREAZF GEI) 10.84 20.32
Discontinued operation BRIERE XK
Profit for the year from discontinued ARRERBAEERGERIE
operation attributable to owners of the REZEBZRNFE
Company (HK$'000) w A (FETT) - 648,717
Weighted average number of ordinary RUAFHESRERAEF 2
shares for the purposes of basic TR R E 8 A
earnings per share 2,029,872,000 2,029,872,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERZF GBL) - 31.96
Continuing and discontinued FERERCRLEREZER
operations
Profit for the year attributable to ARRERFBEERGZ
owners of the Company (HK$'000) REZ )&mH (FET) 220,097 1,061,166
Weighted average number of ordinary AU ESRERERNZ
shares for the purposes of basic L@ mniETaE 8
earnings per share 2,029,872,000 2,029,872,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREEARZFR CE) 10.84 52.28

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the

Company did not have any potential ordi
outstanding.

nary share BREGKRE SRR -

FEREFEARNEERAT 2017FFHR

BN AR R EE A RBEITEE LB - AL E
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y% - BERRE
EQUIPMENT
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
BER machinery vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total
HENERE  BERER B FARZE EEIR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr ThL ThL ThL Thr Thr
At 1 January 2016 R201651A1A
Cost A 447,999 106,682 11,450 8,584 2,066 576,781
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (32,522) (77,910) (8,807) (6,717) = (125,956)
Net book amount BEFE 415,477 28,772 2,643 1,807 2,066 450,825
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE016512A31BLEE
Opening net book amount ENREEE 415477 28,772 2,643 1,867 2,066 450,825
Exchange differences ELEE (25,286) (3,009) (85) 9) (615) (29,004)
Additions RE - 13,063 - 209 24,050 37,322
Transfer upon completion TIER 12,300 = = = (12,300) =
Disposals mE (32) (5,038) - (324) - (5,394)
Depreciation e (16,578) (6,353) (665) (472) - (24,068)
Closing net book amount EREAFE 385,881 27,435 1,893 1271 13,201 429,681
At 31 December 2016 #2016%12A31R
Cost A 434,981 111,698 11,365 8,460 13,201 579,705
Accumulated depreciation ZHHE (49,100) (84,263) (9.472) (7,189) = (150,024)
Net book amount EHFE 385,881 27,435 1,893 1,271 13,201 429,681
Year ended 31 December 2017 BENITENANALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 385,881 27,435 1,893 1,21 13,201 429,681
Exchange differences EXEH 24,904 1,095 320 1891 821 29,031
Additions AE 3492 5975 453 1142 10,635 21,697
Transfer upon completion TIBE 10,755 - - - (10,755) -
Revaluation of buildings upon transfer to ~ EfFEARENEMET
investment properties 20,708 - - - - 20,708
Transfer to investment properties ERRENE (49,478) = = = = (49,478)
Disposals e - (5,947) = (326) - (6,273)
Depreciation il (14,116) (9,498) (378) (1,022) - (25,014)
Closing net book amount EXEHEE 382,146 19,060 2,288 2,956 13,902 420,352
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31R
Cost KA 445,362 112,821 12,138 11,167 13,902 595,390
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (63,216) (93,761) (9,850) (8.211) - (175,038)
Net book amount REFE 382,146 19,060 2,288 2,956 13,902 420,352
Depreciation expense of HK$1,034,000 (2016: #r & F = #1,034,0007%8 7t (20164 : 1,288,000
HK$1,288,000), HK$2,668,000 (2016: HK$1,610,000) BIT) 2,668 000/ 7T (20164 1,610,0007%
and HK$21,312,000 (2 0 1 6 : HK$21,170,000) has been 7t) }%21,312,000% 7T (2016$ 170,0007%
charged to selling and marketing costs, cost of sales and 7T BEDBIETAE kT i}?ﬂﬁfﬂi$ $4 & i A
administrative expenses, respectively. MITHAX -
Rental expenses amounting to HK$17,111,000 (2016: HFAEYEMARA17,111,000/8 i€ (20164
HK$20,311,000) relating to the lease of properties are 20,311,000 L) Bt Allsm R 2 S o
included in the income statement.
During 2017, in relation to the transfer of certain R2017FA > RERETERYEEREMEM
owner-occupied properties to investment properties, = ' AR EUEE20,708,0007% JT (F0 K IR IE L 1H
a fair value gain of HK$20,708,000, net of deferred 3,106,000/ 70) B R4 A 2 M I 3% & e 37

taxation of HK$3,106,000, was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017, the legal title of a building
held for self-use located in the PRC with carrying
amount of HK$340,643,000 (2016: HK$356,497,000)
had not been obtained by the Group. In the opinion of
the Board, there is no legal obstacle in obtaining such
legal title.

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. Y% -BERRKE(E)

R20179F12A318 » REBE DR — RN E
i 1 {6340,643,00078 7T (20164 : 356,497,000
BTIZERBTOGBALEE -EX2R /Y
RS A AR R BORRER -

15. REYHE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Beginning of the year F ) - -
Transfer from property, EEAME  BERZE

plant and equipment 49,478 -

Exchange differences MEHZR 1,724 =

End of the year FR 51,202 —

(a) The investment properties are located in the (a) ZEREWMEIM AP B A1 E204F B

PRC and are subject to various tenancies with
terms ranging from 1 year to 20 years.

(b) The rental income from investment properties
for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$1,217,000.

ZZBEMMEE °

(b) NEZE2017F12831B LFEE - 8EY
¥ HELWAAE1,217,00058 It °
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15.
(@)

148

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2017 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, a
firm of independent and qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. The
valuation was principally based on income
approach by taking into account the terms of
any existing leases and other external evidence
such as current market rents or sales for similar
types of properties in the locality, and using
capitalisation rates that reflect current market
expectation for the assets being valued. For
all investment properties, their current uses
equates to the highest and best use.

All of the fair value measurements of the
Group’s investment properties were categorised
into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Details
of fair value hierarchy classification are set
out in Note 3.3. There were no transfers of
fair value measurements into or out of Level 3
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the
management of the Group works with Asset
Appraisal Limited to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 3 fair value measurements. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the Board.

15.

(@

REWME (&)

REFEREWMEMN2017FE12A31B 22
B Th R AN E B EAT (] BRI L S
ERABERNEXEMGHEM—PREEET
EEBAERARNE BETHE - ZHE
FEERWEE  TAERBEAERL 2K
R B At ANE RE AR (20 A B 3 1 Bh [R) FE A
WEZREMBHSNEEER) WFER
RMEAEECEECEBMEEHECE
R EFE - FIEREMFERETHER
BEAREFHERRERSR -

AEEMEREMENAARETENR
BAARBERAINERENE=HR - AAER
BIERBH D EFBHNME3I3R - REF
N ZERENETERNRBEFEEARK
EHE M-

RBERR - AEBEEEERTHEEE
HERER AR AR AR REEESF
—MZ AR EFENEBEITEREE -8
BEAAEBLREAEY BRAEFSE
BRBEOREA °
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Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

Fair value at 31

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d) 15.

REWE(E)
EREANBABE REEALEHE (B
BN BBERWT
Range of

unobservable Relationship of
inputs/weighted unobservable inputs to

December 2017 Valuation Unobservable average fair value
Description R2017%12831 technique(s)  inputs BUBRCHEEE EUBRZEBEARE
H15 AzARE “EFE $UBRCEE JIEEHE HEER
HK$'000
FET
Office building and 51,202 Direct Market price RMB30,810 The higher the market
carparks — Beijing comparison  TIZ{EE per square metre  price, the higher the
EFERBEM 1R method F¥HK  fairvalue
BELEVE AR®30,8107c MBERERE  AAE
S|
16. LAND USE RIGHTS 16. LiifEARE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FETT
Beginning of the year F4 11,944 13,219
Exchange differences PEH AE% 822 (819)
Amortisation B84 (452) (456)
End of the year FR 12,314 11,944

All the land use rights are located in the PRC and with
remaining lease terms ranging from 10 years to 50

years.

As at 31 December 2017, the legal title of the above
land use rights had not been obtained by the Group. In
the opinion of the Board, there is no legal obstacle in

obtaining such legal title.

FA#EER

BT b {E SR B &AL E10E
S0FHEE -

20179128318 » AEBIAR Lt 2 £ b
BEEEE -BEEeRABYIESZEELE
W A EERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. EBFREE

Computer
software
B
HK$'000
FETT
At 1 January 2016 720165F1818
Cost [N 123,838
Accumulated amortisation EE i (108,407)
Net book amount BREFE 15,431
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12831HLFE
Opening net book amount FAREFE 15,431
Exchange differences EXERE (6,635)
Additions NE 25,444
Amortisation b3 (28,282)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 5,958
At 31 December 2016 72016%F12H31H
Cost DN 142,647
Accumulated amortisation Eg 5 (136,689)
Net book amount BREFE 5,958
Year ended 31 December 2017 B Z2017F128318 L FE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 5,958
Exchange differences ERER 299
Additions NE 16,042
Disposal & (72)
Amortisation 5 (19,358)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 2,869
At 31 December 2017 A2017%F12H31H
Cost B AN 158,988
Accumulated amortisation RET#E (156,119)
Net book amount BREFE 2,869

Amortisation expense amounting to HK$19,358,000
(2016: HK$28,282,000) has been charged to research
and development costs under administrative expenses.

# $5 59 2 19,358,000/8 7T (20164 : 28,282,000
BIL) BETATTHFE BT 2T K FEEK A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

18. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

RBEQXTRE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

18.

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Beginning of the year F ) 2,449,780 —

Additions N 7.514 2,167,500

Share of result JE(L 4R 129,874 455,513

— Negative goodwill arising from acquisition — AW EEEL - B EE = 409,448

— Share of post-acquisition profit — (G Ui 12 % T 99,799 46,065

— Gain on anti-dilution of interest —— A E ARz R

in an associate f # RE U a 30,075 -

Exchange differences E W =58 177,977 (112,410)

Dividend % & (51,000) (76,500)

Share of revaluation gains on properties EEMES KR 1,107 5,201
Share of exchange differences on B EBINEERIE N =5

translation of foreign operations 67,074 10,476

End of the year FR 2,782,326 2,449,780

Particulars of the associates at 31 December 2017 and B2 N B FR2017F K2016F12A318 2 1B 1A

2016 are as follows:

Place of establishment Principal place of

b =

—

Interest held

Name and type of legal entity operation and activities Paid-in capital fi R
£ RUBERAREE IEQEHYREY BhEs 2017 2016
CEOWU Cayman Islands, limited PRC, development and HK$771,332,400 33.06% 31.88%
hERA liability company operation of business parks (2016: HK$800,000,000)
RERE BRAMLF b EXR/ERRES 771,332,400 ¢

(2016 : 800,000,000

A7)
Beijing Chipadvanced Technology Inc. PRC, limited liability company PRC, provision of integrated RMB40,740,000 10.36% -
IRRZHERAERAR hE - BREMAF circuit testing services AR 840,740,000

T REEHERNFRE

In the opinion of the Board, the associate, CEOVU is EFeRs BERAIPRELAEAEERMSE

material to the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s interest in CEOVU at 31
December 2017 based on the closing price of HK$0.75
per CEOVU ordinary share as quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 31 December 2017
was HK$1,912,500,000.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in associates at 31 December 2017
(2016: nil).

BEE-

AEBRPENAZEZFNR2017F12A31BHZA
A 1EA1,912,500,00078 7T © TIIRIESRAEALS
LBAR2017F12 A3 BEBRBH AR AR
NEIFTRZ KT E0.758 Lt & »

R2017F12 A31 B AEB R &R R RIS
BB EE(2016%F : &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

18.
(Cont’d)

Set out below are the summarised financial information

of CEOVU and its subsidiaries:

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

18.

REERNERE (&)

TEAAREMBRATZHMBEEHMT

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20175%12831H 201612 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F&ET

Current RE
Assets BE 12,565,416 11,068,737
Liabilities aE (4,632,298) (3,990,992)
Non-current FERE
Assets BE 5,034,072 3,747,864
Liabilities =KE] (3,693,895) (2,783,984)
Net assets BEFE 9,273,295 8,041,625
Net assets attributable to owners of EEBRPEAREEREEE

CEOVU L EEFE 8,374,301 7,684,379
Investment in an associate R—REBERRKRE 2,768,517 2,449,780

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue YA 3,151,637 2,144,935
Profit for the year attributable to REERMNEBRRELR
owners of CEOVU BalhE 286,871 144,496
Other comprehensive income for REZHMEE K :
the year:
ltems that will not be subsequently TEERESFERHENN
reclassified to profit or loss: EHEWIEE :
Revaluation gains on properties )% & W a 3,373 16,315
ltems that may be subsequently Hg e ENEE RN
reclassified to profit or loss: EERIER :
Exchange differences on translation BMEBIINEBHER =8
of foreign operations 204,467 32,860
Total comprehensive income for the AFEEEHKRRBEFEBR
year attributable to owners of CEOVU EXAEREAE 494,711 193,671
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE
19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—HBEE L ARE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Beginning of the year F 1) 6,406 5,776
Share of post-tax (loss)/profit EEBRTE (B8) /87 (2,518) 1,039
Exchange differences PE W =% 218 (409)
End of the year FR 4,106 6,406
Particulars of the joint venture at 31 December 2017 A& A AIR2017F &20165F12A31A 2 B W
and 2016 are as follows: TS €
Place of establishment  Principal place of Registered and Interest held

Name and type of legal entity operation and activities paid-in capital FrisRs
a8 R HRAAEE TECEBHRES S RERER 2017 2016
Chongging Huahong PRC, limited liability PRC, design and sale of RMB10,000,000 51% 51%

Electronics Co., Ltd company integrated circuit chips

(“Chongging Huahong")
ERENETARRA hE - FREEAA RE ERERTH 2R AR%

([EEE]) REE 10,000,0007T
In the opinion of the Board, the joint venture, EZeRA GERAREERENHASEMSE
Chongging Huahong is not material to the Group. TEE o
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20.

ASSETS

AHtHESMEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2017 2016

20174 20164F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Beginning of the year F1 44,516 149,624
Exchange differences 5 =R 7,958 (4,951)
Additions Zmn 579,444 4,880
Transfer to investment in associates EEIBE A ARRE (7.514) =
Disposals HE (421,919) (105,037)
End of the year FR 202,485 44,516

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

31 December

AL ESREERBRATER :

31 December

2017 2016
20175128318 20165 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000
FBT FH&ET
Wealth management products (Note (a)) Bt & B IEEm (Ait@)) 202,485 37,249
Equity investment (Note (b)) P& ¥ & (BT (b)) - 7,267
202,485 44,516

Analysed for reporting purposes as: ED TS
Current assets mEEE 202,485 37,249
Non-current assets FEREE - 7,267
202,485 44,516

(a) The wealth management products are issued (a) MEEREMIBHPEEERTET - &%
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth ENEEREMIAREIRIEREB R -
management products are principal protected WAAREGFERABN T1E23@EAKRE
and with non-guaranteed return, denominated H o ZEREZANEBENRBE/ERT
in RMB and with terms ranging from 1 PRt SIBREMETE -
month to 3 months. The fair value of these
investments was determined with reference
to the statements provided by the commercial
banks.

(b) The equity investment represents an equity (b) REFREEE —RPBIKY 227 /8%
interest in a company established in the PRC - BARZEEERB NS ANTSE
and are measured at costs less impairment at % ARG ANERERAMEES
balance sheet date, as these assets do not have B FrZREREmaeE  EREERZ
a quoted market price, the range of reasonable RARBBER £ ©
fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be
reasonably assessed.
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21. INVENTORIES 21. #FE8
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
2017€128318 2016412 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TH&T
Work in progress ER G 137,978 82,530
Finished goods ZLRK mh 268,107 174,480
406,085 257,010

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$946,555,000

(2016: HK$822,630,000).

Provision for inventories of HK$12,056,000 (2016:
HK$30,403,000) has been charged to cost of sales.

ERABAXLFAFEXNARAZFEKRAERR
946,555,000 7T (20164 : 822,630,000/& 7T ) °

A 812,056,000 T2 EFEEE (20164 -
30,403,000 70) B st ASHE K A ©

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EZRHMERKRNRE
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
2017128318 2016%F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAET
Trade receivables =) & 775,934 927,262
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (c)) J& < BB & (#7:(c)) (48,259) (31,747)
Trade receivables — net B S EWRIE - F58 727,675 895,515
Other receivables from third parties H b RS = 5 FUE 10,158 17,220
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (d)) J& - BB # @& (472#(d)) (166) (705)
Other receivables from third parties —  E b B S8 = 75 ;08 — %58
net 9,992 16,515
Other receivables from related parties — E fif f& X B Bk A £ 5RI8
(Note 33) (B7a#33) 1,485 2,344
Undeducted input value-added tax RN A EIEIEZER 21,143 20,144
Prepayments and deposits BRI RIEBERES 6,023 8,144
Interest receivables from an associate B —FEEE AR 2§ 8 952 22,074
767,270 964,736
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables of the Group
approximated their fair values.

Trade and other receivables were unsecured and
interest-free. Included in the balance of trade
receivables are trade receivables from related parties of
HK$26,368,000 (2016: HK$125,039,000) (Note 33).

Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31
December 2017 and 2016 are denominated in the
following currencies:

22. BESREMEWEIEZ)

M2017F R20165F12A31H - KEB 2B FH K&
HEmtmEWREZ EIERE AR BERSE -

EoREMBBRREBEL AEBEARES - ;T AR
SREBRELGBAZEREBALTESREAL
26,368,000/ 7T (20164 : 125,039,0007% 7T ) (#f
it33) o

NEBER2017F K2016F12A318 28 5 & A
thEKRF IR EEESMT ¢

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175128318 2016 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Renminbi AR 764,362 956,816
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,908 7,920
767,270 964,736

(a) The majority of the Group's sales are with (a) AEBEZHERSBOD 2EEHRI0BE

credit terms of 30 days to 135 days. The
remaining amounts are due immediately after
the delivery of goods. The ageing analysis
of trade receivables (net of provision for
impairment) presented based on revenue
recognition date is as follows:

1350 - EARHERERE m R K2
2 o RIBUAFER B IR E 5 R UKIR
(R ERE) R DM T

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

2017%12H318 20165F12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Current to 30 days 30HA 208,398 161,025
31 - 60 days 31HZ60H 62,798 155,766
61 — 180 days 61HZ180H 256,138 387,025
Over 180 days and within 1 year 180 A ER1ER 106,934 68,299
Over 1 year 1F A E 93,407 123,400
727,675 895,515
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)
(b) The trade receivables which were past due but

not impaired related to a number of customers
with no history of default, the ageing analysis
of these trade receivables are as follows:

22.

(b)

EZREMERFREE)

BRHBYERELE S ERKIEEE L
WEERRIECHRZBREER  EERERD
T -

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175128318 201612 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THT

Current to 30 days 30BN 108,791 102,497
31 - 60 days 31H%60H 59,992 62,170
61 — 180 days 61H®180H 57,355 139,069
Over 180 days and within 1 year 180A A ERI1ER 20,514 19,741
Over 1 year 1A 32,106 41,511
278,758 364,988

(c) Movements in the provision for impairment of () AREEE FREWKIBREREG ZESHW

the Group’s trade receivables are as follows:

I

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE

2017 2016

20175 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TH&TT

Beginning of the year F 9] 31,747 16,571
Provision for impairment VRIERE L 19,827 16,935
Written off 11 85 (6,021) -
Exchange differences PE W =% 2,706 (1,759)
End of the year FR 48,259 31,747

These individually impaired receivables mainly
related to certain customers which are in
unexpected difficult economic situations. It was
assessed that these receivables are not expected
to be recovered and thus full impairment
provision was provided against them.

{18 511 (E B FE W R R 2 B 2K B B IR TR RHA
SRR R R R LR o F LUK
B Aeem - AE S HEFTIREER
AR B o
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, BESRHMEWRKIEE)
(Cont’d)
(d) Movements in the provision for impairment of (d) N [E H A e W R IEDR B B 2 E B 1D
the Group’s other receivables are as follows: ™~
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FH&ET THT
Beginning of the year F ) 705 740
(Reversal of provision for impairment)/ CRREB B RERE
provision for impairment (569) 12
Exchange differences PE X Z=RE 30 (47)
End of the year FR 166 705
The other receivables were impaired and full HupElh R BE wREY D B EEIES 5
impairment provision was provided against G RERE R
them.
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mEMBHRRMTE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZE2017F 12318 Lt FE
23. SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND 23. EHMERERE
INVESTMENTS
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
2017512A318 2016 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Short-term deposits (Note (a)) EEER (K EE)
At banks RITHETF - 126,483
At other financial institutions Hih B iS4 1F
— A related party (Note 33) — BBt AN (B7£33) 11,000 1,118
11,000 127,601
(a) Short-term deposits represent deposits at banks (a) RETFRDNERIBABAIEAUEZR
or other financial institutions with original T E M B RSB0 - B 20175124
maturity over 3 months. The effective interest 318 ZETFARZ2EBRFH L B2.05%
rate on these deposits at 31 December 2017 (20164 : 1.71%)

was 2.05% (2016: 1.71%) per annum.
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2, RERREEEY
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175128318 201612 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAT
Cash Re
At banks and on hand RITEGFELERES 58,095 178,290
At other financial institutions EMBEsTT
— A related party (Note 33) — A AN+ (K iE33) 148,254 111,600
206,349 289,890
Short-term deposits (Note (a)) RHTFR (K EE)
At banks RITHET - 622,027
At other financial institutions BB s EasTr
— A related party (Note 33) —BABE A+ (H15E33) 167,482 -
167,482 622,027
373,831 911,917
(a) Short-term deposits represent deposits at banks (a) R NERIBARIBAIUTZ

or other financial institutions with original
maturity of 3 months or less. The effective
interest rate on short-term deposits at 31
December 2017 was 3.82% (2016: 3.15%) per

RITHEAM T BT

M2017412

A31H  GEHERZEBRFHEAE3.82%

(2016%F : 3.15%) °

annum.
25. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 25. BRARRE
Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each
SREE.IEBLTZERBR
Issued and Share
Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE  EBERTRSRE R REE CEH
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2016, R2016F15818
31 December 2016, 2016F12A318 -
1 January 2017 and 20171818 R
31 December 2017 20175124318 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 805,155 825,454
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26. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 26.

i S B AT 48 BY

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE

2017 2016

20175 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT FAT

Beginning of the year F 9] 34,532 122,271
Exchange differences [ERIy- 2,249 (1,817)
Additions 3N 10,266 9,126
Credited to the income statement oW as & (15,184) (95,048)
End of the year FR 31,863 34,532
Amount mainly represented various subsidies granted ZHEFERRAAREEME MFAEIER M

by and received from local government authorities BT R 2 B BB - B IRZFA X &
for financing various research and development B 2 M2 & RERER B 2 AN 3 & 2 B B

projects conducted by the Group. These subsidies will RAWA o

be recognised as income over the period necessary
to match with the cost that they are intended to
compensate.

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. BEZREMENKIE
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175128318 2016 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000
FERT FHET
Trade payables B 5N RIA 415,738 335,416
Other payables to related parties H h FE T B Bk A £ 5KIB
(Note 33) (Bt7#33) 29,240 221,843
Salary and welfare payables & 1t %57 B 53,313 51,261
Other taxes payables H b e B 18 13,526 17,456
Other payables and accrued expenses — ELfth & ft ;RIE R TE1R & A
(Note (a)) (K1at(a)) 122,984 166,096
634,801 792,072
(a) Other payables and accrued expenses mainly (a) HEENARBEREREAETZERERNAR

represented payables for software usage fees
for the purposes of research and development
and sales commissions.

MRELFERENZEMHERE RHER

N7 ©
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Cont’d)

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables
mainly based on the date of invoices is as follows:

27. BEZRHMENSREE)

AEEEZENFATEZLEZEANKRE DT
LU

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175%12831H 201612 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current to 30 days 30HA 205,936 201,178
31 - 60 days 31H%£60H 90,051 67,798
Over 60 days 608 A 119,751 66,440
415,738 335,416

Included in the balance of trade payables are
trade payables to related parties amounted to
HK$318,245,000 (2016: HK$197,092,000) (Note 33).

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying amounts

of trade and other payables of the Group approximated
their fair values.

28. UNSECURED CORPORATE BONDS

SANESENRELEGAZEMNBBALE SR
T8 £318,245,000/%8 7T (20164 : 197,092,000/
7C) (B17£33) °

M2017F %20165F 128310 - REB 2B 5 &
EMEMNZRBEZEREEEANAERE -

28. EEHRLEGBSS

2017 2016

201745 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

At 1 January M1A1H 3,069,502 3,258,479
Interest and issue cost amortised BB A B KRBT A 6,427 19,863
Exchange differences ERZ= 41,838 (208,840)
Redemption 5 3] (3,117,767) -
At 31 December M®12H31H - 3,069,502

In January 2014, the Company issued 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount
of RMB2,750,000,000 (the “Bonds”). The Bonds bore
interest at the rate of 4.70% per annum and were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
In January 2017, the Company redeemed the Bonds in
full.

R2014F1 8 ARABITAESBBAARE
2,750,000,0007T 7220174 2| i #94.70 % & K ##
EH ([%EFHF]) - ZEBHFRFFNELTO% B -
WRBEEHAERZFER AR LM o KR20174F1
A ARRBEEEERZES -
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

29. RITKRHMEE

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

2017%128318 20165F12A31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHBT FAET

Bank borrowings RITIEE 2,242,695 120,312
Entrusted loans from related parties B ALTEZITER 71,778 357,309
2,314,473 477,621

Secured B - 120,200
Unsecured E 2,314,473 357,421
2,314,473 477,621

Bank and other borrowings were arranged at fixed and
variable rates. The average effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank and other borrowings at 31 December
2017 is 3.57% (2016: 3.97%) per annum.

At 31 December 2016, the bank borrowings of
HK$120,200,000 were secured by the Company’s
short-term deposits of HK$126,483,000.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying
amounts of bank and other borrowings of the Group
approximated their fair values.

At 31 December 2017, bank borrowings of
HK$2,242,575,000 were guaranteed by CEC.

The bank and other borrowings of the Group were
denominated in the following currencies:

BITREMEENIREBRZELTH - R2017F
12A318 - AEERTREMEENFEHERS
FZE A53.57% (20164 : 3.97%) °

2016 12H31H » A#0120,200,000/% JT & iR
TR E THLAKR A T1#9126,483,0000 7T 58 HiTE &
YEIE R o

M2017F %20165F 128310 - KAEB 2 HR1T R
EMEEsREEEEAABERES -
R2017%12H31H » A%2,242,575,0007% 7T &Y

RITEERPEEFEBREMHER -

AEBZRITRAMBEEREEEOWT

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175128318 20165 12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Renminbi AR 2,214,473 357,421
Hong Kong dollars BT 100,000 120,200
2,314,473 477,621
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30. CASH GENERATED FROM 30, REELEZRE
OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation (including BRERRT (BEB&IE
discontinued operation) L7 ¥EE) 218,006 1,101,136
Adjustments for: A EE
Depreciation of property, plant M BERZEFE
and equipment 25,014 24,068
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 19,358 28,282
Interest income e A (8,731) (97,051)
Interest expenses FES 101,777 190,779
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE K&E
plant and equipment (Wz=) /B8 (5.266) 393
Gain on disposal of a business e —TEEB WS (102,510) =
Fair value changes on investment KREMEN DA BEE
properties - (45,395)
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 PR HE A 5 452 456
Share of result of associates JEAG B & N R SR (129,874) (455,513)
Share of result of a joint venture B —FHEERREEA 2,518 (1,039)
Gain on disposal of the HEBRIELEZ
discontinued operation ER 2 WS = (620,794)
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 R H M EURIE 2
and other receivables VERI=RE g 19,258 16,635
Provision for inventories FE 2B 12,056 30,403
152,058 172,360
Changes in working capital LEEEH
Inventories & (138,705) (28,580)
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e U FRIE 212,828 7,217
Deferred government grants 5 & BT 48 B = (97,419)
Advances from customers RPN FRIE 2,008 3,110
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th &~ 5IE 70,714 170,526
Cash generated from operations REEFEZEHE 298,903 227,214
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31. COMMITMENTS

e M| RME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE
31. &g
RemHERE

Operating lease commitments

The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for office
premises are as follows:

AEBERBIAIBRZMAETYRE K EHEM
ARARIN 2 REHEFIRLRBRAT

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175128318 2016F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not later than one year 1F R 11,499 15,744
In the second to fifth year F2FEEFESFNR 4,593 9,582
16,092 25,326
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. HEBEAEE

The Group did not have any material contingent liability

at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

R2017F12A318 » AEEYEETMEARXEE
& (20164 : £#£) o
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33.

AND BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions

in the ordinary course of business with related parties

during the year:

(a) Significant transactions with related (a)

parties

BEBALRSE RER

HEBALTZEARS

BRRAGEMBRREMTNERENS MG
BN RAFEARNEB R BE X BES RE
BMALTETT NISHEERRS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$' 000
(i) Continuing operations BEKE XK FET FHET
CEC FEETEHE
Interest expenses A A 3,143 3,083
Guarantee fee BRE 10,931 =
Companies under common THEEFEE
control of CEC HEEZESZA A
Sale of products HEEM 168,092 157,700
Purchase of goods and services REE M MRS 636,853 409,039
Interest income F 2 WA 1,288 421
Interest expenses ME X 7,008 8,324
Rental expenses e H 1,308 1,412
Rental received el A 1,217 =
Property management fee MEEEE 6,674 6,649
Fees and commissions for financial PERE 2 FEE
services eylitken 15 1,255
Catering service fee EHRRBE 3,702 3,066
Addition of borrowings igEsE 290,446 357,309
Repayment of borrowings BEEEE 591,023 -
Associate g — N
Interest income B U A = 48,502
Rental expenses e = 307
Joint venture EERQT
Sale of products HEE M = 2,496
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BBATIXRZR#ER(E)
AND BALANCES (Cont'd)
(a) Significant transactions with related () BHBEBALZEAXRZ(£E)

parties (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$' 000
(ii) Discontinued operation (i) BRERKE ZEK TET AT
Companies under common FHEEFEE
control of CEC HEZEHZQF]
Property management fee MEERE - 613
Fees and commissions for financial KRB FEE
services kEE - 263
Associate -3 /N
Interest income e A = 20,320
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AND BALANCES (Cont’d)

(b) Significant balances with related

33. BEBMATXRZIRES (F)

(b) EERAEEANLZEXRLEER

parties
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175%12A31H 2016F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
CEC PHEEFEE
Other payables H b fE S 5RIE 3,589 3,354
Borrowings B 71,778 67,076
Companies under common THEHEEFEE
control of CEC HEEFZA A
Trade receivables E 5 EWFRE 19,020 118,172
Other receivables H b fE SR IE 1,485 2,344
Deposits 73 326,736 112,718
Trade payables B 5 ENRIA 318,245 197,092
Other payables H b FE 1 3B 25,591 218,433
Advance from customers PN HRIE 5,988 -
Borrowings ERc = 290,233
Associate g — BN
Interest receivables & U F B = 22,074
Other payables H {th F& < 5RIE 60 56
Joint venture PN
Trade receivables 2 5 e W GRIE 7.348 6,867

Other than the deposits and the borrowings which

are interest bearing, the above balances with
related parties were unsecured, interest-free and
settled according to the relevant contract terms. The
borrowings from related parties are unsecured and with
interest rate ranging from 4.00% to 4.35% per annum.

BEAKEEANEIN  EMEHALEHEE
iR REWREBEHEBENGRIEREE - B
TEREABERBERIENTEFEL00%E4.35%

FHR o
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BBALIXRBIRER(E)

AND BALANCES (Cont'd)
(c) Key management compensation () FEEBEAEHME
Year ended 31 December

HBZEZ12A318LtEFEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’'000 HK$' 000
FExT F&T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #H 4  ZEE R EWEF 6,332 5,708
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET IR 418 495
6,750 6,203
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3. ARAALAFAEERGERZEN

34. INFORMATION ABOUT BALANCE
SHEET OF THE COMPANY

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
2017%12A318 2016%F12H31H
Note HK$'000 HK$' 000
k=3 FHT F& T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 2,150 1,667
Investments in subsidiaries WEARKE 35 1,037,086 1,037,086
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U — R BT B A B FTB 2,231,011 2,072,296
3,270,247 3,111,049
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b e U I8 71,923 59,390
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEEHESmEE 142,360 11,179
Short-term deposits and REFERREE
investments - 126,483
Cash in transit TEHRBEe = 866,754
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 30,124 664,181
244,407 1,727,987
Total assets EERE 3,514,654 4,839,036
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EaRAE
Equity =
Share capital and premium AR AR Kk (B 25 825,454 825,454
Reserves ] (@) 413,051 431,518
Total equity RSB 1,238,505 1,256,972
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H h FE -t ;I8 6,389 74,180
Unsecured corporate bonds BEEALEERS 28 - 3,069,502
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEER 2,242,575 410,434
Income tax payable J& 1 FT 45 3t K IE 27,185 27,948
Total liabilities BEEEHE 2,276,149 3,582,064
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEELEH 3,514,654 4,839,036

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
the board of directors on 26 March 2018 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Dong Haoran E R
Director &%

AARZBEEBBREEETEN2018F3H26H

BUfE - WA FIATHRERSE:

Liu Hongzhou 24T M
Director &%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

3. ABALAEEREBERZEH

34. INFORMATION ABOUT BALANCE
SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(@) Reserves of the Company

(%)

(a) ADFZHE

Retained

earnings/

(accumulated

Translation Contributed losses)
reserve surplus 1REBF Total
BN BERARK (R EE) B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&T TH&T FHTT FHTT
At 1 January 2016 M20165F181H 21,752 292,867 (12,486) 302,133
Total comprehensive income & T Wz 42 %8 (27,988) = 218,269 190,281
Payment of dividend R AR B - (60,896) = (60,896)
At 31 December 2016 720165128 31H (6,236) 231,971 205,783 431,518
At 1 January 2017 R201751581H (6,236) 231,971 205,783 431,518
Total comprehensive income & T Wz 42 %8 13,823 - 28,606 42,429
Payment of dividend RS IR B = = (60,896) (60,896)
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12831H 7,587 231,971 173,493 413,051

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as
specified in Section 54 thereof.

RIEBREIIFRNANE (FEF]) » ARAI2E
BEBAINZ DA REBSAMEFRTAZETIBRT
DIRTFIE

FEREFEARNEERAT 2017FFHR
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 35. MEBARIKRE-—ZXQF
- COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
2017%12H318 20165F12A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT THTT
Investments — unlisted equity interests, % #& —3E_E A% -
at cost B ARE 1,037,086 1,037,086
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December FEM B A AN20175F X20165F12A318 2 &7
2017 and 2016 are as follows: BT

Interest held

fr s
Place of establishment Principal place of Registered and 2017 2016
Name and type of legal entity ~ operation and activities paid-in capital  Directly Indirectly  Directly  Indirectly
£ RIBHERATHE TEQEBURER AMRERER E& GF Bk ik
Huada Electronics ~ PRC, limited liability company PRC, design and sale of RMB446,800,000 100% - 100% -
EXET mE - EREAAR integrated circuit chips AR %446,800,0007
RE - ERERLRY
Rt RHE
Huahong PRC, limited liability company PRC, design and sale of RMB158,471,000 - 95.64% - 95.64%
#q hE - BEREAAA integrated circuit chips ARE158,471,0007C
ME RKERTRZ
Rt REE
In the opinion of the Board, the non-controlling EEeRA EUZHEREREASEMEE
interests of Huahong are immaterial to the Group and TEE WA ERBRET 2HMBER -
thus the financial information of Huahong are not
disclosed.
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

36. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2017
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s

services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiaries:

36. ALAEENME

(i) BZE2017F128318 L E

EREF (BRAQRNENE AR REHRL M
BB E

Estimated
money value Retirement
of other benefit
benefits scheme Discretionary

Name of director Fee Salary Hiig R RIKER bonuses Total
EEps ik e STEREE at8l MERA At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TR TERT
Dong Haoran BER - - - - - -
Ma Yuchuan X - - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou EIAW - 750 - 184 915 1,849
Jiang Juncheng ZEK - - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung BRHE 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng B k4 200 - - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum R 200 - - - - 200
600 750 - 184 915 2,449

M Discretionary bonus for the year 2016 approved and paid in
2017.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors had waived any
emoluments during the year.

) 2016 BB TEAT R 201 7R JEHE A2 B 3SR ©

FRAEEVEAES N ERMMESERME
AEEKMBE 2 BEHAERBET ZfE - FA
NEEENERTFAHNE -
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31B It FE

36. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF 36. ADNTEENME (Z)

THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(ii)  For the year ended 31 December 2016 (ii) HEZE2016F12A31BLLFEE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s ERES (BRARFXANBEAR) BERBE M
services as a director, whether of the Company or its BB E
subsidiaries:
Estimated
money value  Retirement
of other benefit
benefits scheme Discretionary
Name of director Fee Salary Efthm@AlfE RIKEF bonuses Total
EENA wE e FE%EE TEl BBIEA B &r
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET FET FHET
Rui Xiaowu® RER® - - - - - -
Dong Haoran EEA - - - - - -
Ma Yuchuan® Sxe@ - - - = - -
Liu Hongzhou B4 - 750 - 172 900" 1,822
Xie Qinghua® WEEC = 36 = 6 = 42
Jiang Juncheng®? ZERO - - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung BRIEE 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng B A 200 - - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum PR 200 - - - - 200
600 786 - 178 900 2,464
M Discretionary bonus for the year 2015 approved and paid in o 2015F BB IEAT 2016 EHE A2 R BE K ©
2016.
@ Appointed on 19 January 2016. @ R2016F1H19BEZ T -
® Resigned on 19 January 2016. @ M2016F1 A19H BHE -
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31H L FE

37. NET DEBT 37. B FHE
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
2017%12H31H 201612 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FATT
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMReEEY 373,831 911,917
Liquid investments (Note (a)) mEBERE (M5t (a) 202,485 37,249
Borrowings repayable —FARERE
within one year (2,314,473) (3,547,123)
Net debt B T8 (1,738,157) (2,597,957)
Cash and liquid investments HWeMREtERE 576,316 949,166
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BB — BT M= (2,214,473) (3,426,811)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BSMATE -2 X (100,000) (120,312)
Net debt B F5 (1,738,157) (2,597,957)
Liabilities
from
financing
activities -
Other assets AT
HipEE repayable
within
Liquid one year
investments  RiE T EIE
(Note (a)) a8E-
Cash REMRE —FR Total
Bé (Kti(a) BERFE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAT
Year ended 31 December & Z2016512831H
2016 LLEE
Opening net debt FOEBFE 777,065 147,237  (3,276,383)  (2,352,081)
Cash flows Rene 184,133 (105,037) (480,939) (401,843)
Interest and issue cost B#HA B R EITRR
amortised - - (19,863) (19,863)
Exchange differences Rt (49,281) (4,951) 230,062 175,830
Closing net debt FREBFHE 911,917 37,249  (3,547,123)  (2,597,957)
Year ended 31 December & Z2017512831H
2017 LEEE
Opening net debt FOEBFE 911,917 37,249  (3,547,123)  (2,597,957)
Cash flows ReEne (512,030) 157,155 1,437,863 1,082,988
Interest and issue cost B#HA B R BT AR
amortised - - (6,427) (6,427)
Exchange differences R (26,056) 8,081 (198,786) (216,761)
Closing net debt FREBFHE 373,831 202,485  (2,314,473)  (1,738,157)

(@ Liquid investments comprise short-term
investments that are traded in an active market,
being the Group’s available-for-sale financial

assets.

(a)

MBUREREEMERTRETS ERXHH
MEIRE  IAKERENAHEESRE
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Five-year Financial Summary

hEFEMBERRE
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BZ1N2B31ALEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 20164 2015%F 20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TEL TET TEL
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51) (&51)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RER) (BEZ) (BE%) (REER) (REER)
(i) (i) (i)
Revenue LON 1,453,035 1,358,953 1,720,099 1,928,702 1,922,046
Profit for the year attributable to ~ AFEHEF FBR
owners of the Company ARARRFEE 220,097 1,061,166 177,353 222,069 351,079

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERERE
31 December
12A31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017F 20164 20155 20144 20134

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET AL TET TEL
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(E51) (E3) (&51)

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RER) (&%) (BE%) (REER) (REER)
(i) (i) (i)

Total assets BEME 5,074,820 6,093,268 6,721,257 7,552,772 3,637,271

Total liabilities BiERE (3,032,910) (4,412,619  (5,170,282)  (6,014,867)  (1,817,360)

2,041,910 1,680,649 1,550,975 1,537,905 1,819,911

() The financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2013, (i) HE20134F + 2014F K2015F 12318 L FE 28 7%

2014 and 2015 are restated using the principles of merger BHBEDNRBEEGAIESIESHARELA OG5

accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5. Details of which were RAIES| - AAFBEERANEEHZ2016512A3181E
disclosed in Note 2.1 of the consolidated financial statements FEZEREMBHRERMT2.155E -

of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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